
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


An ordinance repealing Zoning Code Section 78-205(12) and all ordinance references to a group 


development within the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances 


Committee 


Action:    


Plan Commission recommends approval 7 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-26- 2020 First Reading:  


Second Reading: 


November 24, 2020  


December 8, 2020 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do repeal the following: 


 


Sec. 78-205(12) – Group Developments.  A group development is any development 


containing:  


(a)  Two or more structures containing principal land uses on the same lot;  


(b)  Any single structure on a single lot which contains five or more dwelling units or 


two or more non-residential uses; and/or,  


(c)  Any new institutional, commercial, and office buildings in excess of 5,000 gross 


square feet and to all multi-building group developments in which the combined 


total of all structures on a site, regardless of diverse ownership, use or tenancy, 


combine to exceed 5,000 square feet.  


(d)  Any building additions to institutional, commercial, and office buildings that bring 


the total building size to over 5,000 gross square feet. These regulations shall apply 


to the building addition, the older portions of the building constructed prior to the 


adoption of this section, and to the site.  


(e)  Common examples of group developments include six-unit apartment buildings, 


apartment complexes, condominium complexes, strip centers, shopping centers, and 


office centers. (One tenant office or commercial buildings containing less than 


5,000 square feet of gross floor area, four-unit apartment buildings, and other land 


uses in which each non-residential building contains only one tenant, or where the 


lot contains only one structure, or where each residential building contains four or 


fewer dwelling units, are not group developments even though such developments 


may contain parcels under common ownership.)  


A group development does not offer the ability to customize the regulations of this 


zoning ordinance as could be achieved using a planned development per subsection 


78-105(7). A group development approval is not required for an approved specific 


implementation plan.  


Any land use that is permitted as a Permitted by Right land use or as a Conditional 


land use within the applicable zoning district(s) is permitted to locate within a group 


development. The detailed land use regulations of this subsection that pertain to 


individual land uses shall also apply to individual land uses within a Group 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIESZODI_S78-105PUINSTZODI

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIESZODI_S78-105PUINSTZODI





T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


 


Development, as will all other applicable provisions of this chapter. Therefore, land 


uses permitted by right in the Zoning District shall be permitted by right within an 


approved group development (unless otherwise restricted by the conditions of 


approval imposed during the conditional use approval for the group development as 


a whole), and land uses permitted as a conditional use in the Zoning District shall be 


permitted within the group development only with conditional use approval for the 


specific use. In all cases, the following conditional use conditions shall be applied to 


the group development as a whole, and to individual uses within the group 


development:  


1.  The development shall contain a sufficient number of waste bins to 


accommodate all trash and waste generated by the land uses in a convenient 


manner.  


2.  All development located within a group development shall be located so as to 


comply with the intent of this chapter regarding setbacks of structures and 


buildings from lot lines. As such, individual principal and accessory structures 


and buildings located within group developments shall be situated within 


building envelopes that serve to demonstrate complete compliance with said 


intent. Said building envelopes shall be depicted on the site plan required for 


review of group developments. The use of this approach to designing group 


developments will also ensure the facilitation of subdividing group 


developments in the future, (if such action is so desired).  


3.  The entire development shall provide for full and safe pedestrian and bicycle 


access within the development, and shall provide appropriate connections to 


the existing and planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities in the community 


and in surrounding neighborhoods, including sidewalk connections to all 


building entrances from all public streets. The development shall provide 


secure bicycle parking and pedestrian furniture in appropriate quantities and 


location. A central pedestrian gathering area shall be provided.  


(1312)  Division or combining of a lot. No recorded lot shall be divided into two or more lots, 


and no two or more recorded lots shall be combined into one or more lots, unless such 


division or combination results in the creation of lots, each of which conforms to all of 


the applicable regulations of the zoning district in which said lot is located (as set 


forth in this chapter). (See also the City of Stoughton Land Division Ordinance.)  


  


78-205(9) Number of buildings per lot: In the RH, SR-3, SR-4, SR-5 and SR-6 Districts, only 


one principal building shall be permitted on any one lot. In the TR-6, MR-10, MR-24, NO, PO, 


NB, PB, CB, PI, GI, HI and I Districts, more than one principal building shall be permitted on 


any one lot upon the granting of a conditional use permit for a large development in compliance 


with subsection 78-205(11) or a group development in compliance with subsection 78-205(12). 


78-206(1)(a)1  Single-family detached. Description: A dwelling designed for and occupied by 


not more than one family and having no roof, wall, or floor in common with any other 


dwelling unit. This dwelling unit type consists of a fully detached single-family residence 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS





T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


which is located on an individual lot or within a group or large development. The dwelling unit 


must be a site built structure built in compliance with the State of Wisconsin Uniform 


Dwelling Code (UDC), or may be a manufactured dwelling (modular home) as permitted by 


the UDC or a manufactured home as permitted by the HUD code. For any of these dwelling 


units, the use of a permanent, continuous UDC foundation is required. This dwelling unit type 


may not be split into two or more residences. Refer to the illustration below and to article I for 


setback requirements labeled in capital letters:  


78-206(1)(a)3  Twin-house. Description: These dwelling unit types consist of a single-family 


dwelling which is attached on one side to another single-family residence. A minimum 


building code required fire rated wall assembly division, separating living areas from the 


lowest level to flush against the underside of the roof is required between each dwelling unit. 


Upon the effective date of this ordinance amendment, all newly constructed twin homes are 


required to have a sanitary sewer lateral to the sanitary main and a public water lateral from the 


water main, for each individual dwelling unit. Separate water and sewer laterals, to the 


respective mains, are required when converting an existing duplex to a twin home or when 


building a new twin home. The two residences are located on separate lots. The twin house is 


distinguished from the duplex house merely by having each unit located on an individual lot or 


within a group or large development. These dwelling unit types may not be split into additional 


residences. A mutual maintenance agreement is recommended to be drafted and recorded 


between property owners to address for example; repair and/or replacement of the exterior 


components of the structure. Refer to the illustration on the following page and to Article I for 


setback requirements labeled in capital letters: 


78-206(1)(a)4  Two-flat house. Description: This dwelling unit type consists of a single-family 


residence, which is in complete compliance with the State of Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling 


Code (UDC), which has been converted into a two-family residence. The two residences are 


both located on the same lot or within the same group or large development. This dwelling unit 


type may not be split into additional residences. Where permitted, this use is a conditional use 


and must be approved through the procedures of section 78-905. Refer to the illustration below 


and to article I for setback requirements labeled in capital letters:  


78-206(1)(a)5  Townhouse. Description: This dwelling unit type consists of attached, two-


story, single-family residences, each having a private, individual access. This dwelling unit 


type is located on its own lot or within a group or large development and may not be split into 


additional residences. A minimum building code required fire rated wall assembly division, 


separating living areas from the lowest level through the roof, and individual sanitary sewer 


and public water laterals, are required between each dwelling unit. No more than six and no 


less than three townhouse dwelling units may be attached per group. All townhouse units 


within a development shall be located a minimum of 30 feet from the boundary of the 


development. Refer to the illustration below and to article I for setback requirements labeled in 


capital letters:  


78-206(1)(a)7  Apartment. Description: This dwelling unit type consists of an attached, multi-


family residence which takes access from a shared entrance or hallway. A minimum building 


code required fire rated wall assembly division, separating living areas from the lowest level to 


the underside of the roof, is required between each dwelling unit. No less than three dwelling 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-905COUSREAPPR





T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


 


units may be located in a building. As part of the conditional use requirements for group 


developments, any development comprised of one or more buildings which contain four or 


more dwelling units shall provide additional site design features such as: underground parking, 


architectural elements, landscaping, and/or on-site recreational facilities. Refer to the 


illustration below and to article I for setback requirements labeled in capital letters: 


78-206(1)(a)8  Mobile home. Description: This dwelling unit type consists of a fully detached, single-


family residence, which has not received a Federal Manufactured Housing Certificate and which is 


located on an individual lot or within a group or large development. This dwelling unit type may not be 


split into two or more residences. Within 30 days of occupancy, the owner shall remove the axle and 


install skirting per the requirements of the plan commission. Refer to the illustration below and to 


article I for setback requirements labeled in capital letters:  


78-105(2)(a)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(b)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(c)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(d)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(e)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(f)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(g)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(2)(h)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(3)(a)3b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(3)(b)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(4)(a)3b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(4)(b)2b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


78-105(4)(a)3b  Group developments (per subsection 78-205(12)) 


66-303(3)f  Location and approximate dimensions of any sites that are to be used for group 


developments or planned unit developments as defined in subsections 78-205 (11) and 78-105 


(7) of the city zoning ordinance, respectively. 


78-015 - Definitions. 


Building envelope: A component of a large or group development which conforms to the lot 


lines of developments which are not group or large developments, in that required minimum 


setback distances are measured from the building envelope line. (Refer to subsections 78-


205(11) or (12)) 


 


Group development: See subsection 78-205(12). 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIESZODI_S78-105PUINSTZODI

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS





T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\09a-Group Developments 78-205(12).docx 


Shopping center: See group development or large development. 


 


78-914(8)(a)4a  A SIP site plan conforming to all the requirements of subsection 78-908(3). If 


the proposed Planned Development is a cluster development (per subsections 78-206(1)(b) 


through (f)), a large development (per subsection 78-205(11)), or a group development (per 


subsection 78-205(12)), a proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat may be required by the 


zoning administrator in addition to the required site plan. 


 


78-914(8)(a)7  A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs, 


concepts for public fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street sign 


faces and/or poles), and group development signage themes which are proposed to vary from city 


standards or common practices. 


 


78-704(6)(i)  Parking lot design standards. Horizontal widths for parking rows, aisles, and 


modules shall be provided at widths no less than listed in Table 78-704(6)(j), and shown on the 


following page. Additional design standards apply to "Large Developments (See section 78-


205(11)) and “Group developments." (See section 78-205(12)) 


 


78-905(4)(d)  A site plan of the subject property as proposed for development. Said site plan 


shall conform to any and all the requirements of subsection 78-908(3). If the proposed 


conditional use is a large development (per subsection 78-205(11)) or a group development (per 


subsection 78-205(12)), a proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat may be substituted for the 


required site plan, provided said plat contains all information required on said site plan per 


section 78-908; 


 


 


 


 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


      Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:             


       Holly Licht, City Clerk 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-908SIPLREAPPR

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-206DELAUSDERE

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTVIIPEST_S78-704OREPATRCIST

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-908SIPLREAPPR

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-205REAPALLAUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-908SIPLREAPPR

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-908SIPLREAPPR





T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2020\110920\Plan Info\Group Development Memo-rjs.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
Date:  October 26, 2020 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council  
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the November 9, 2020 Plan Commission Meeting and Common 


Council Meetings of November 24 and December 8, 2020 
 
Proposed zoning ordinance amendment to repeal section 78-205(12) and all references to 
group developments. 
 
The group development section focuses on evaluating only three aspects of certain projects.  These 
generally include:  


• Waste bins to accommodate trash 
• Evaluation of building position on the site to accommodate possible lot division in 


the future 
• Pedestrian and bicycle accommodations  


 
These items are routinely part of the evaluation of any site plan; most of which are further evaluated 
as part of a Conditional Use Permit or Planned Development process.  The group development 
references are confusing and cumbersome to only focus on three primary items that are able to be 
evaluated through other aspects of review. 
 
We recommend removal of this section of code and associated references.   



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning Amend - Group Developments.doc 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Virtual Public Hearing on Monday, November 9, 2020 at 
6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider proposed ordinance amendments to 
the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinance sections relative to group developments.  This proposal is 
to repeal section 78-205(12) and all references to group developments within the City of Stoughton code of 
ordinances, Dane County, Wisconsin.   
 
Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, this meeting will not be open to the public in an in-person capacity. For those 
wishing to view the meeting and/or ask questions, you may do so via the following options: 
 


Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/795356605  


You can also dial in using your phone.  
(For supported devices, tap a one-touch number below to join instantly.)  


United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679  
- One-touch: tel:+18668994679,,795356605#  


United States: +1 (571) 317-3116  
- One-touch: tel:+15713173116,,795356605#  


Access Code: 795-356-605  


 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/795356605 
 
If you wish to speak at or have your comments read aloud at the meeting, please register at 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on the day of the meeting. The Clerk will the receive comments and 
forward them on to the “Organizer”. The public can click on the link or call in and use the access code. When 
connected the public will have to identify themselves in order for the “Organizer” to rename them on the 
“Attendee” screen. If you plan to speak, please mute TV or stream volume (if online) and do not use 
speakerphone, as it creates feedback, there may be a delay. The Public Comment participant will be unmuted by 
the “Organizer” when it is their turn and have up to 3 minutes to speak. After speaking, the “Organizer” will 
mute the Public Comment participant. The participant can log out or hang up and stream at WSTO, or watch on 
Channel 981 on Charter/Spectrum. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-0421 
 
Published October 22 and October 29, 2020 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  11-9-20.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, November 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson; Tom 
Selsor; Tom Majewski and Brett Schumacher 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development 
Press: None 
Guests: Phil Harrison 
 
1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of October 12, 2020. 


Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


3. Council Representative Report. 
Caravello stated the Common Council approved the following:  
 


O-19-2020 – Amending the Zoning Classification at 1114 and 1115 Abel Court 
O-20-2020 – Amending Zoning Code 78-707 and 78-704 regarding exterior lighting 


 
4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


Scheel gave an overview of the current status of developments as outlined in the packet of 
materials.  There were no questions. 
 


5. Request by Vik Malling to amend zoning ordinance section 78-722(7) Swimming Pool 
Standards.  (postponed from September 12, 2020) 
Mr. Malling contacted the City and reported he couldn’t participate tonight.   
 
Barman reported his understanding of our existing ordinances regarding fencing for pools: the 
fence is high enough (5 ft) so you don’t have inadvertent accidents and far enough from the edge (4 
ft) to prevent someone from jumping over the fence into the pool.  He also stressed the “self-
closing, self-latching” requirement is important to him.  He suggested that the ordinance as 
proposed section 6 conflicts with section 7.  He suggests we should clean up this section and has 
offered some suggested language to be considered. 
 
Motion by Barman to postpone action until December to allow Mr. Malling to participate and to 
have staff incorporate Commissioner Barman’s suggested language into the draft ordinance, 2nd by 
Robinson.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 
6. Proposed zoning ordinance amendment to repeal section 78-205(12) and all references to 


group developments. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
11/9/20 
Page 2 of 3 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  11-9-20.docx 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment as 
presented, 2nd by Schumacher.   
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 


7. Request by Phil Harrison to discuss the regulations for flags and banners used for 
commercial signage. 
Phil Harrison explained that they are 2 year residents of Stoughton.  They had observed “feather 
flags” elsewhere and thought they could be put up without a permit. 
 
Commissioner Barman indicated as a local business owner he had previously inquired about 
“feather flags” for his own business and found they were not allowed.  He stated it is a difficult 
time to invest in permanent signage. 
 
Selsor suggested that Barman should recuse himself from voting on this item. 
 
It was suggested that “sandwich board” type signs are better suited for pedestrian traffic vs. 
vehicular traffic. 
 
Caravello suggested he may be willing to consider 1 feather flag per business with the message 
“Open”. 
 
There was discussion about possibly allowing one wave banner per lot to be used only when the 
business is open.   
 
Barman suggested maybe considering one for each building per street frontage so a corner building 
would be allowed one on each street. 
 
Majewski is concerned about the density of feather flags and suggested maybe one per lot in the 
downtown area.  They should not be allowed in the right of way except in the downtown district. 
 
The Commissioners would like staff to draft language for them to consider at the next meeting.  
They suggested we may need to include the City Attorney into the discussion. 
 
No motions were made. 


 
8. Discuss potential zoning code amendments to allow mobile food vending on private property. 


Majewski is ok with 180 days but indicated 90 days may be better.  Schumacher indicated support 
for 90 to 180 days. 
 
Barman indicated Portland, OR has a system where they review mobile vending as part of a site 
plan.  Mobile vending has been incorporated into strategies to encourage business activity in 
communities.  
 



mstacey

Highlight





		09a-Group Developments 78-205(12)

		09b-Zoning Ord Repeal - Group Developments

		ADP1591.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, November 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting










 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to appoint Jake Dillon as the agent for Kwik Trip Inc., 


d/b/a Kwik Trip #967, located at 2400 Roby Rd  


 


  


  
 
File Number:  R-177-2020 


 
Date Introduced:   November 24, 2020 


 
WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received a Schedule for Successor of Agent and Schedule 


for Appointment of Agent for Kwik Trip #967, and 


 
WHEREAS, the application was forwarded to the Police Chief for review, now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to appoint Jake Dillon as the agent for Kwik Trip 


#967.  


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 





















		10a-Kwik Trip Agent Reso

		10b-Kwik Trip-Change of Agent_Redacted










 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest St., Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution Ordering a Special Election for Aldermanic District 1 


 


 


 


  
File Number: R-178-2020 


 
Date Introduced: November 24, 2020  


 


WHEREAS, Timothy Riley resigned from his position as District 1 Alder of the City of 


Stoughton on September 1, 2020 which thereby creates a vacancy pursuant to §17.03(4)(c), Wis. 


Stats.; and 


WHEREAS,  the Common Council voted on October 13, 2020 to fill the vacancy by 


appointment of the Common Council until a special election could be held in April 2021 as 


authorized by §17.23(1)(a), Wis. Stats; and  


WHEREAS, the appointed alder, Joyce Tikalsky, will serve in this seat until April April 2021  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that a special election be 


held in April 2021 for Aldermanic District 1 to serve the remaining term until April 2023 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 








Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, November 24, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open 


at 6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/794408309. You can also dial in using your 


phone: +1 (571) 317-3117 . Access Code: 794-408-309. 


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please  notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 Visitor Services 2021 Budget Presentation  


 


2. Minutes and Reports: 


 


 


3. Public Comment Period: 


 If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and 


submit it by 6:30 p.m. on November 24, 2020. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4. Consent Agenda 


A. November 10, 2020 Council Minutes 


B. Stoughton Utilities October Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities September Financial 


Summary; Stoughton Utilities  


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. O-25-2020-Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating 


subsection (82) relating to No Parking Anytime on the west side of Hoel Avenue between Otteson 


and Odegard Drives. (Public Safety recommended approval 5-0 on October 28, 2020) 


SECOND READING 


 


 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/794408309

tel:+15713173117,,794408309

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





 


6. R-174-2020- A resolution approving the Summary Report of the Redevelopment Authority of the 


City of Stoughton (“RDA”) regarding the sale of the property located at 314 West Main Street, 


Stoughton, Wisconsin (commonly known as the Marathon site) (the Property”) (RDA approved 6-0 


on October 14, 2020)  


 


7. R- 175-2020- Approving a Connecting Highway Designation agreement between the Wisconsin 


Department of Transportation (DOT) and the City of Stoughton for costs for the maintenance of 


USH 51 from Hoel Avenue to Roby Road. (Finance meets November 24, 2020)  


 


 


8. R- 176-2020-Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to approve the Police Department 


2020-2021 Union Contract (Finance meets November 24, 2020)  


 


9. O-26-2020- An ordinance repealing Zoning Code Section 78-205(12) and all ordinance references 


to a group development within the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances (Plan Commission 


recommends approval 7-0)        FIRST READING 


 


10. R-177-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to appoint Jake Dillon as the agent 


for Kwik Trip Inc., d/b/a Kwik Trip #967, located at 2400 Roby Rd 


 


11. R-178-2020- Ordering a Special Election for Aldermanic District 1 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch  


 








2020 Budget
& Ad Review


Visit Stoughton







2020 Proposed Budget


Projected Net Balance (2019) $7,900


2019 Carryover $12,000


City of Stoughton Room Tax $54,000


Administrative Expenses $17,983


Operational Expenses $41,218 ($28,750 marketing/advertising)


Total Expenses $59,201


Net Income -$5,201


Projected Net Balance (2020) $6,799







2020 Budget vs Actual


Jan – Oct 2020 Budget 2020 Actual


City of Stoughton Room Tax $47,000 $30,480


Marketing / Advertising $28,750 $23,312


Printing $850 $201


TRAVEL CARES Grant $7,000


Difference $76,600 $60,993







Q1 Marketing & Advertising


Beloit Travel Center
Dining Guide for 
Visiting Teams


Discover Wisconsin: Aired Spring 2020!



https://youtu.be/Z9CreVHxhnU

https://youtu.be/Z9CreVHxhnU





Q2 Marketing & Advertising


Destination Madison 
visitor map


Viking Magazine 
(Sons of Norway publication)


Brava, April’s 
travel section







Q2 Marketing & Advertising
Updated Poster at 
Beloit Travel Center


Shipped 6,000 
Community Guides 
to other Wisconsin 
Visitor Bureaus and 
Chambers. 







Q2 Marketing & Advertising


The second week was transferred to June 
30 – July 5 to highlight the Stoughton Fair & 
Catfish River Music Festival, of which were 
cancelled, so I marketed the downtown 
shopping scene to bring in visitors during a 
major highway project.


Radio Commitment for Syttende Mai Festival (signed in fall 2019)


I transferred one week to air May 4 – 10 
and highlight the Discover Wisconsin 
launch.







Q3 Marketing & Advertising
Brava Sponsored 
Content 
(Transferred 
from a previous 
Syttende Mai 
commitment for 
May)







Q4 Marketing & Advertising


Stoughton Opera 
House Arts & 
Community Guide


Shopping Incentives for 
Hotel Guests







Q4 Marketing & Advertising
Digital Visitors Map


https://viewer.mapme.com/shopstoughton







Online Marketing : Instagram







Online Marketing: Facebook


Like us @ VisitStoughton







Online Marketing


Website + a Monthly 
Newsletter!



https://www.visitstoughton.com/





Online Marketing: VisitStoughton.com


Group Tour 
Travel Guide







2021 Proposed Budget


Projected Net Balance (2020) $6,799


2020 Carryover $0


City of Stoughton Room Tax $40,500


Special Projects $3,000


Administrative Expenses $17,983


Operational Expenses $25,610 ($14,750  marketing/advertising)


Total Expenses $43,593


Net Income -$100.00


Projected Net Balance (2020) $6,799







Callie LaPoint
Events & Visitor Services Manager
Stoughton Chamber of Commerce


Thank you!





		Slide Number 1

		2020 Proposed Budget

		2020 Budget vs Actual

		Q1 Marketing & Advertising

		Q2 Marketing & Advertising

		Q2 Marketing & Advertising

		Q2 Marketing & Advertising

		Q3 Marketing & Advertising

		Q4 Marketing & Advertising

		Q4 Marketing & Advertising

		Online Marketing : Instagram

		Online Marketing: Facebook

		Online Marketing

		Online Marketing: VisitStoughton.com

		2021 Proposed Budget

		Slide Number 16






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\Minutes\01-Landmarks Minutes 10-8-20.docx 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday October 8, 2020 – 6:30 pm 


Virtual 
 


Members Present:  Peggy Veregin, Chair; Todd Hubing; Greg Pigarelli, Secretary; Kimberly 


Cook; and Alan Hedstrom, Vice-Chair 


Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 


Absent: Kristi Panthofer and Jean Ligocki  


Guests: Derek Westby 


Press: None 


 


1. Call to order.  Veregin called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 
 


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of September 10, 2020.   


Motion by Hubing to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Hedstrom.  Motion carried 5 - 0. 
 


3. Discuss future of Landmarks website with Derek Westby. 


Veregin discussed the need to update the Landmarks Commission website. 


 


Hedstrom stated a CLG Grant was acquired to help create the current website: 


stoughtonlandmarks.com   Hedstrom stated the site should have been .org since .com is typical 


for a business. 


 


Veregin stated a CLG Grant is not likely viable in the future. 


 


Derek Westby, Stoughton Media Services, does not recommend using the City website, rather 


he suggests using Square Space similar to other departments.  The cost is $250 per year. 


 


The Commission discussed how Square Space can meet Landmarks needs including adding an 


interactive map for historic districts and local landmarks.  Square Space provides a lot of 


functionality that any Commissioner can learn to use and update information. 


 


Derek Westby stated stoughtonlandmarks.org is available for use which would cost $10 per 


year. 


 


Motion by Hubing to purchase the stoughtonlandmarks.org domain name, 2nd by Hedstrom.  


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


Veregin suggested a subcommittee to explore how to move the data over to Square Space.  


Hedstrom and Hubing expressed interest.  Veregin will check with Panthofer to see if she can 


help.  Derek Westby stated he can help too. 


 


Hubing explained how he put together the historicstoughton.org site and noted it was a lot of 


work. 


 


Veregin and Hedstrom plan to discuss how to proceed after the meeting. 


 


 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


10/8/20 


Page 2 of 2 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\Minutes\01-Landmarks Minutes 10-8-20.docx  


4. Discuss Local Downtown District Planning. 


Veregin contacted Nick from Lakota Group who stated he would be happy to assist with a 


virtual meeting to wrap up the project. 


 


Veregin stated the need to decide when to have the meeting and suggested the presentation be 


before the Committee of the Whole (COW) similar to the recent RDA presentation.  Hubing 


likes the idea of having the presentation before the COW. 


 


Veregin to contact Mayor Swadley to discuss having a presentation before the COW. 


 


5. Discuss potential grant(s) funding for walking tour brochures and website updates. 


Veregin stated the website is now off the table for funding, right now given the context of the 


previous discussion. 


 


Hedstrom stated he tried to find grants available through Dane Arts but did not find anything on 


their website. 


 


Stacey stated the residential and downtown design guidelines could use an update. 


 


Veregin stated we’ll focus on the website for now and the printed materials later. 


 


6. Discuss purchasing plaques where needed for Local Landmarks. 


Veregin contacted some fabricators to get estimates to create the plaques.  Veregin noted we 


should have enough funds for the more recent local landmark approvals. 


 


Veregin stated a plaque presentation at the property is something to consider. 


 


7. Discuss potential Tower Times articles. (Oct 15th Deadline) 


Stacey provided an article for the Tower Times and will send Veregin a previous article used for 


tax credit information that needs some updates. 


 


8. Commission Reports/Calendar.  Nothing discussed. 


 


9. Future agenda items.  Nothing discussed. 


 


10. Adjournment. Motion by Hedstrom to adjourn at 7:46 pm, 2nd by Pigarelli.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\Minutes\02-Plan Minutes  10-12-20.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, October 12, 2020 at 6:00 pm 


Virtual Meeting 
 


Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson; Tom 


Selsor; and Brett Schumacher 


Members Absent: Tom Majewski 


Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator and Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and 


Development 


Press: None 


Guests: Vik Malling; William Montelbano; Mary Allen; Bernie Lange; Nick Allen; Joseph Crubaugh. 


 


1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of September 14, 2020. 


Motion by Selsor to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Robinson.   


 


Barman clarified the zoning code does not prohibit internally lit signs in the downtown design 


overlay zoning district rather the code prohibits plastic signs.   


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


3. Council Representative Report. 


Caravello stated the Common Council approved the following: 


 Zoning amendment to allow alcohol production in the Central Business District 


 CSM approvals (2) for Habitat for Humanity at Abel Court 


 First reading for rezonings at Abel Court  


 CUP for Mershon’s Cidery 


 CUP for Lutz Brothers 


 CUP for Bouzek 


 ETJ CSM for Lange 


 ETJ CSM for Chandler 


 First reading for zoning amendment related to exterior lighting regulation 


 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


Scheel gave an overview of the current status of developments as outlined in the packet of 


materials.  There were no questions. 


 


5. Request by Vik Malling to amend zoning ordinance section 78-722(7) Swimming Pool 


Standards. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


10/12/20 


Page 2 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\Minutes\02-Plan Minutes  10-12-20.docx 


 


Barman is concerned about the language related to the gated access to the stairs.  Scheel stated 


current language requires self-closing, self-latching gates. 


 


Vik Malling stated the proposal is to lock the gate but it could be self-closing, self-latching. 


 


Barman stated the need to take into account all types of products when amending the code. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to postpone this agenda item until the November meeting to allow staff to 


revise the language, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


6. Request by William Montelbano for renovation approval at Fosdal’s Bakery, 243 E. Main 


Street. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Joe Crubaugh stated the intent is to provide better access for customers. 


 


William Montelbano gave an overview of the plans. 


 


Scheel noted a survey will be necessary to determine the limits of the front property line for the 


ADA ramp. 


 


Barman questioned the decision to change from a demo/addition to a renovation.  Bernie Lange 


stated the change was driven by cost. 


 


Caravello expressed concern that the ramp could be attractive to kids with skateboards. 


 


The group discussed options to prevent kids from using the ramp for skateboards. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Robinson to approve the renovation as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   


 


Barman questioned the ADA ramp width and how much sidewalk would be left for pedestrians. 


Scheel stated the current width of the sidewalk is approximately 12 feet. 


 


Scheel stated if the ramp is in the right-of-way, there will be a separate approval process. 


 


William Montelbano stated the actual size of the ramp will be 3 feet 6 inches to allow for the 


railing. 


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


10/12/20 


Page 3 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\11-24-2020\Minutes\02-Plan Minutes  10-12-20.docx 


 


7. Request by Mary Allen for renovation approval at 109-113 E. Main Street. 


Mary Allen explained the request.   


 


Barman questioned how shiny the galvanized metal is compared to the pictures.  Mary Allen stated 


the fence is not that shiny. 


 


Barman asked if the metal is paintable.  Mary Allen stated the paint will peel and would be a 


maintenance issue in the future. 


 


Barman stated there is not a good coordination of colors and the existing colors are grandfathered.  


Barman suggested an acid wash may help prior to painting. 


 


Mary Allen stated an acid wash may help dull the metal. 


 


Caravello stated the metal gives it an industrial look but it is better than it was before. 


 


Robinson suggested painting the door to match an existing color. 


 


Selsor stated since this is not the front of the building, let the owner use a color of their choosing. 


Barman disagrees since the ordinance requires the Commission review the coordination of colors. 


 


Mayor Swadley stated the Commission typically reviews plans before installed and recommends 


applicants come to the Commission early to work these issues out. 


 


Mary Allen stated she does not like the existing red color and would like to change the color in the 


future. 


 


Barman stated changing the red color in the future will help with coordinating the colors of the 


building, door, fence and stairs. 


 


Mary Allen stated she recently repainted the red paint but will come back to the Commission when 


a change is planned. 


 


Motion by Selsor to approve the fence renovation as presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion carried 5 


– 1 (Barman voted no) 


 


8. Future agenda items. 
None discussed. 


 


9. Adjournment. 


Motion by Barman to adjourn at 7:00 pm, seconded by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted,   


 


Michael P. Stacey 







 


 


Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday October 8, 2020 @ 5:00 PM 


Virtual Meeting -  Stoughton, WI 
 
Members Present:  Mitch Bergeson, Mike Point, Kevin Short, Dean Tangeman  


Absent & Excused:  Fred Hundt and Jim Fitzgibbon 


Staff:    City Forester John Kemppainen and Admin Asst. Vickie Erdahl 


Guest:  


Call to order:  Bergeson called to order @ 5:05 PM  


 
1) Communications:  


 
 


2)   Approval of minutes from September 10, 2020 Meeting:  Motion by Short, seconded by Tangeman 
to approve the minutes.  Carried 4-0. 


 
 


3) Forestry Reports:  Kemppainen stated: 


 
       September: 


 Located planting sites for fall tree planting.  A total of 121 trees will be planted this fall. 


 Work continues in Amundson Park to remove ash trees. 


 I met with Stoughton resident Don Rorvig to discuss log donations to the Stoughton Oseberg Wagon 
project.  The Tree Commission has donated some lumber already but the project needs additional 
pieces to complete the work. 


 I will be a presenter for the Urban Wood Network’s National Urban Wood Academy, which will take 
place on November 20, 2020.  This event will be virtual, originally was planned to take place in 
Louisville, KY as part of the Arbor Day Foundation annual conference. 


 I met with the DNR to discuss upcoming research project looking at tree root/sidewalk conflicts.  
Multiple sites have been included as potential locations for the study but sidewalk repair funding is still 
unknown for 2021. The study will look at different treatment methods to address roots which are 
affecting hardscape infrastructure. 


 Submitted an application for an Urban Forestry grant through the DNR.  This grant application was 
submitted on behalf of the Tree Commission to complete a private property tree planting initiative in 
response to ash trees lost to EAB.   


 
 


4)  Discussion on Zoning / Landscape Ordinance:  Subcommittee held a meeting earlier in October. At this 
meeting language changes were drafted.to the Zoning Ordinance Sec 78-611 – Classification of plant 
species. Changes made were in yellow (zoning administrator changed to City Forester and/or the City 
Tree Commission) and deleted language was highlighted in pink (Deletion of Table 78-611). 
 
Motion by Tangeman, seconded by Point to approve draft of verbiage and move the modification 
forward to the Planning Commission for review.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
At this time an open discussion began on Appendix B to decide which trees would be considered as 
Climax, Tall Deciduous, Medium Deciduous, Low Deciduous and non-contributory (no point trees).  Also 
discussed were the point values. Multiple tree species and values were evaluated. 
 







 


 


Kemppainen will provide the subcommittee with a breakdown of species from the inventory as the tables 
that were being used were several years old. 


 
 
 
5)  Discussion on Tree Application and Criteria:  This item was tabled until we know whether we received 


the grant. 
 


 
6) Future Agenda Items:  Landscape / Zoning Ordinance Review,  


 
 


  Motion by Tangeman seconded by Point to adjourn the meeting at 6:19 p.m.  Respectfully submitted 10/20/2020, Vickie 
Erdahl - Staff  





		01-Landmarks Minutes 10-8-20

		02-Plan Minutes  10-12-20

		03-TC Min October 8, 2020






Date//Time: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open 


at 6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/171226893. You can also dial in 


using your phone: +1 (571) 317-3129 . Access Code: 171-226-893 .  


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted there were 12 alders present.  


 Election Update 


 Clerk noted that turnout from the November 3, 2020 General Election was 93.7% of 


registered voters.  She thanked the 79 poll workers for all their efforts to run a 


successful election.  


 Alderperson Ligocki noted that January 9, 2021 is law enforcement appreciation day and 


thought it would be appropriate for the council to recognize SPD then. 


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record. 


Finance (10/13/20); Public Safety (9/23/20); Personnel (5/4/20, 8/19/20) Police and Fire Commission 


(12/13/19, 4/27/20, 6/4/20, 8/5/20) 


 


Public Comment Period: 


 


 Dave Erdman, 436 Seamonson Cir., thanked City Clerk Licht and he staff for their work in 


the election. His comments were read.  


 Sharon Mason-Boersma, 243 E. McKinley St., registered in favor of the council amend the 


budget to include $1000 to be allocated to the Affordable Transportation Program. Her 


comments were read.  


 Jenny Brtiain, 248 W Main St. #1, spoke on behalf of the business owners in the Senior 


Center Annex building. She stated that many of the businesses have a long history of doing 


business in Stoughton and would like to continue to do so out of the annex building.  


 Brady Troeller, registered in favor of the Whitewater Park project. His comments were read.  


 Al Waller, 228 E McKinley St., spoke against the Whitewater Park.  


 Mark Hale, 2703 County Rd. B, spoke in opposition of the Whitewater Park and the dam 


removal.  


 Judy Bills, 806 Lincoln Ave, registered in opposition of the Whitewater Park. Her 


comments were read.  



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/171226893





 Edward Schultz, 2707 Yahara Rd., registered in opposition of the Whitewater Park. His 


comments were read.  


 Katharin Foster, Stoughton, registered in opposition of the Whitewater Park. Her comments 


were read.  


Consent Agenda 


A. October 27, 2020 Council Minutes 


B. R-165-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants. 


 


Motion by Heili, second by Reeves to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


O-22-2020- To amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the 


City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement of water metering facilities and the 


replacement of inaccessible metering facilities.  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Ligocki to approve O-22-2020 To amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) 


and create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the 


placement of water metering facilities and the replacement of inaccessible metering facilities. Motion 


carried 12-0. 


 


O- 23- 2020- To amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and create Sections 74-2 (g) of the City of 


Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect service lateral connections.  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve O-23-2020 To amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and 


create Sections 74-2 (g) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of 


indirect service lateral connections. Motion carried 11-0 with Tikalsky abstaining. 


 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


PUBLIC HEARING: 2021 City of Stoughton Operating Budget  


 


The public hearing opened up at 8:15 p.m. There were no comments from the public. The public hearing 


ended at 8:16 p.m.  


 


R-166-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to adopt the 2021 City of Stoughton 


Budget  


 


Motion by Hirsch, second by Schumacher to approve R-166-2020 Authorizing and directing the 


proper City official(s) to adopt the 2021 City of Stoughton Budget. Motion carried 11-0 with Boersma 


abstaining. 


 


R-167-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of Stoughton five-


year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)  







Motion by Hirsch, second by Schumacher to approve R-167-2020 Authorizing and directing the 


proper City official(s) to approve the City of Stoughton five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement 


Plan (CIP).   


Motion by Boersma, second by Hundt to remove $282, 907 for the removal of the dam and the 


Whitewater Park. Hirsch, Jenson, Ligocki, Caravello and Reeves spoke in support of the 


Whitewater Park. Hundt said that the Whitewater Park shouldn’t be rushed. Motion failed 2-10 


with Boersma and Hundt voting yes.  


Motion by Hirsch, second by Heili to reduce the gas masks and allow for a savings of $7,000. 


Hirsch said that the gas masks are sending the wrong message to the community. Chief said that 


the masks are not offensive, they are used for PPE and the pandemic prompted this request. 


Boersma stated that the police department needs these. Schumacher said that he sees gas masks 


as a piece of safety equipment. Motion failed on a vote of 2-10 with Hirsch and Heili voting yes. 


Original motion carried 11-1 with Boersma voting no. 


 


R-168-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 


2021 budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  


Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to approve R-168-2020 Authorizing and directing the proper City 


official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2021 budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital 


Improvement Plan (CIP). Motion carried 12-0. 


R-169-2020-Setting a Special Charge for Garbage and Recycling Collection Fees for Calendar Year 


2021  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-169-2020 Setting a Special Charge for 


Garbage and Recycling Collection Fees for Calendar Year 2021. Motion carried 12-0.  


 


R-170-2020- Authorizing a small claims lawsuit against BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE 


Investment Company LLP regarding unpaid annexation agreement town tax reimbursements 


 


 Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-170-2020 Authorizing a small claims 


lawsuit against BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP regarding unpaid 


annexation agreement town tax reimbursements. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


O-25-2020-Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating subsection 


(82) relating to No Parking Anytime on the west side of Hoel Avenue between Otteson and Odegard 


Drives.  


 


Jenson read O-25-2020 for a first reading. It will be back before the Council on November 24, 2020.  


 


R-171-2020 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to Suspend Ordinance 70-186, 


Downtown 2 Hour Parking Regulations, from November 30th 2020 to January 1st, 2021 


 







Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve R-171-2020 Authorizing and directing the proper city 


official(s) to Suspend Ordinance 70-186, Downtown 2 Hour Parking Regulations, from November 30th 


2020 to January 1st, 2021. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-172-2020-Approving Designated Snowmobile routes in City right of ways  


Motion by Jenson, second by Doom to approve. R-172-2020 Approving Designated Snowmobile routes 


in City right of ways. Motion carried 12-0. 


R- 173-2020- Approving a Class B Winery License Transfer for Mershonian Cidery, LLC from 108 


Business Park Circle #7, to 124 W Main St. 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve R-173-2020 Approving a Class B Winery License 


Transfer for Mershonian Cidery, LLC from 108 Business Park Circle #7, to 124 W Main St. Motion 


carried 12-0. 


Adjournment: 


Motion by Boersma, second by Jenson to adjourn at 9:18 p.m. Motion carried 12-0. 


Respectfully Submitted,  


 


Holly Licht, City Clerk 








DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, November 16, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  1 


Location:   Online Attendance: GoToMeeting ID 583-145-413. 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Ben Heili (Vice-Chair), 


Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Alderperson Greg Jenson, Citizen Member John 


Kallas, Mayor Tim Swadley, Citizen Member Dustin Thoren 


Excused: None 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller Jamin Friedl, Stoughton Utilities 


Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities and WPPI Energy Services 


Manager Amy Wanek, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Utilities Committee Chairperson David Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities 


Committee Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton 


Utilities Committee consent agenda items. 


Motion by Jenson, the motion seconded by Kallas, to approve the following consent agenda items as 


presented:  


a. Draft Minutes of the October 19, 2020 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


b. Stoughton Utilities October Payments Due List Report 


c. Stoughton Utilities September Financial Summary 


d. Stoughton Utilities September Statistical Report 


e. Stoughton Utilities October Activities Report 


f. Communications 


The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 


approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


Consent Agenda:  


1. Draft Minutes of the August 17, 2020 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


2. Stoughton Utilities August Payments Due List Report 


3. Stoughton Utilities September Payments Due List Report 


4. Stoughton Utilities July Financial Summary 


5. Stoughton Utilities August Financial Summary 


6. Stoughton Utilities July Statistical Report 


7. Stoughton Utilities August Statistical Report 



bhoops

Highlight







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 19, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  1 


Location:   Online Attendance: GoToMeeting ID 180-548-901. 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Ben Heili (Vice-Chair), 


Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Alderperson Greg Jenson, Citizen Member John 


Kallas, Mayor Tim Swadley, Citizen Member Dustin Thoren 


Excused: None 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller Jamin Friedl, Stoughton Utilities 


Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Utilities Committee Chairperson David Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 


Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities 


Committee consent agenda items. 


Motion by Jenson, the motion seconded by Kallas, to approve the following consent agenda items as presented:  


a. Draft Minutes of the August 17, 2020 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


b. Stoughton Utilities August Payments Due List Report 


c. Stoughton Utilities September Payments Due List Report 


d. Stoughton Utilities July Financial Summary 


e. Stoughton Utilities August Financial Summary 


f. Stoughton Utilities July Statistical Report 


g. Stoughton Utilities August Statistical Report 


h. Stoughton Utilities August Activities Report 


i. Stoughton Utilities September Activities Report 


j. Communications 


The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 


approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


Consent Agenda:  


1. Draft Minutes of the July 20, 2020 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


2. Stoughton Utilities July Payments Due List Report 


3. Stoughton Utilities June Financial Summary 


4. Stoughton Utilities June Statistical Report 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 19, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Business:  


1. Wastewater 2019 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) 


2. Naming the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller as 
Authorized Representatives to File Applications for Financial Assistance from the State of Wisconsin 
Environmental Improvement Fund 


Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2021 Budget and Five Year (2021 – 2025) Capital Improvement Projects 


(CIP) Plan:  Stoughton Utilities and City staff presented and discussed the proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities 


budget.  Discussion followed.  Stoughton Utilities and City staff presented and discussed the proposed 2021 


five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2021 budget and the 


Stoughton Utilities 2021 five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan and recommend 


approval to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and Create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City 


of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Placement of Water Metering Facilities and the 


Replacement of Inaccessible Metering Facilities:   Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a draft 


ordinance that would require the standardization of existing water metering plumbing arrangements that would 


not meet current plumbing codes.  This ordinance is being proposed in preparation for our upcoming lead service 


line replacement program.  Inaccessible metering locations not only pose accessibility concerns when servicing 


the meter, but can also pose potential dangers to servicing technicians.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve amending Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and 


creating Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement 


of water metering facilities and the replacement of inaccessible metering facilities, and recommend approval of 


the adopting ordinance to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and Create Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the City of 


Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Replacement of Indirect Service Lateral Connections:   


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a draft ordinance that would require privately-owned service 


connection lines be connected directly to the public system, and where any indirect service connections are 


discovered, provides a method to require such indirect connections be relocated  to directly connect to the public 


system.  This ordinance is intended to address scenarios where a home or building on one parcel has a water 


or sanitary sewer service line that connects to service line that provides service to a home or building on a 


neighboring parcel.  Utilities staff is aware of several locations where such connections exist, and examples of 


the issues that can arise from such indirect connections were given.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve amending Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and Create 


Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect 


service lateral connections, and recommend approval of the adopting ordinance to the Stoughton Common 


Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 19, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  3 


Authorizing Stoughton Utilities to Apply for the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Private 


Lead Service Line (LSL) Replacement Program Funding Grant:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the upcoming Private Lead Service Line Replacement Program grant opportunity offered by the 


Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, and Stoughton Utilities’ intent to apply for the grant to help fund 


the planned upcoming 2021 systemwide lead service line replacement program.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Jenson, the motion seconded by Hirsch, to approve authorizing Stoughton Utilities to apply for the 


Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Private Lead Service Line (LSL) Replacement Program Funding 


Grant, and recommend the approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common 


Council on October 27, 2020.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


Mayor Swadley and Utilities Director Weiss left the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 


Status Update: Lead Service Line Replacement Programs:  This item was tabled until the next meeting. 


Status Update: Customer Collections:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed an update on the 


current status of customer collections as a result of the COVID-19 public health crisis, and the status of current 


customer delinquencies.  Staff informed the committee that SU has not completed any residential electric service 


disconnections since October 2019 and has not completed any water service disconnections since February 


2020.  Staff further informed the committee that commercial service disconnections resumed October 1, that the 


annual tax roll process began on October 15, and that customer delinquencies are approximately four times the 


amount they were at this time last year.  Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Utilities Environmental Sustainability:  This item was tabled until the next meeting. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Staff informed the committee that upcoming meeting topics include 


the lead service line replacement program status update and the environmental sustainability discussion items 


that were tabled at tonight’s meeting.  Additional upcoming items include discussion regarding possible 


alternative options for progressing with the lead service line replacement program in 2021 in the case that the 


Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) grant is not received, and the WDNR response to our 


submitted 2019 Wastewater Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR).  Discussion followed. 


Adjournment:  Being no further business before the committee, the Chair adjourned the regular Stoughton 


Utilities Committee Meeting at 7:10 p.m.   


Respectfully submitted 


Brian R. Hoops 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


11:21AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 11/3/2020


Tuesday, November 03, 2020


Description


7430Company:


VO for check batch: 309985EP002072 516 WELLS FARGO BANK10/6/2020  62,902.34


WPPI-Renewable Energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar 


Credit/WPPI-Large Power/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services


HC002073 009 WPPI10/8/2020  913,094.51


AT&T - Oct Ach/AT&T - Oct AchHC002074 952 AT&T10/30/2020  172.03


Alliant Energy - Oct Ach/Alliant Energy - Oct 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Oct Ach/Alliant Energy - Oct 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Oct Ach/Alliant Energy - Oct 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Oct Ach


HC002075 003 Alliant Energy - Ach10/30/2020  345.35


Dept of Rev-Oct AchHC002076 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach10/30/2020  292.98


TDS Metrocom - Oct Ach/TDS Metrocom - Oct 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - Oct Ach/TDS Metrocom - Oct 


Ach


HC002077 007 TDS Metrocom - Ach10/30/2020  500.88


EBC- Oct Ach/EBC- Oct Ach/EBC- Oct Ach/EBC- 


Oct Ach


HC002078 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach10/30/2020  981.47


Charter Comm-Oct Ach/Charter Comm-Oct 


Ach/Charter Comm-Oct Ach/Charter Comm-Oct 


Ach


HC002079 547 Charter Communications-Ach10/30/2020  431.13


Gordon Flesch-Oct Ach/Gordon Flesch-Oct 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-Oct Ach/Gordon Flesch-Oct 


Ach


HC002080 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC.10/30/2020  83.36


First Data-Oct Ach/First Data-Oct Ach/First 


Data-Oct Ach/First Data-Oct Ach


HC002081 421 FIRST DATA CHARGES10/30/2020  40.72


Delta Dental - Oct Ach/Delta Dental - Oct Ach/Delta 


Dental - Oct Ach


HC002082 001 Delta Dental - Ach10/30/2020  1,810.34


State Taxes-Oct Ach/State Taxes-Oct Ach/State 


Taxes-Oct Ach


HC002083 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach10/30/2020  9,413.31


Client Analysis-Oct Ach/Client Analysis-Oct 


Ach/Client Analysis-Oct Ach/Client Analysis-Oct 


Ach


HC002084 020 Wells Fargo Bank-Ach10/30/2020  14,148.88


Dept of Rev-Oct Ach/Dept of Rev-Oct AchHC002085 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach10/30/2020  70,627.34







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


11:21AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 11/3/2020


Tuesday, November 03, 2020


Description


Federal Taxes-Oct Ach/Federal Taxes-Oct 


Ach/Federal Taxes-Oct Ach/Federal Taxes-Oct Ach


HC002086 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach10/30/2020  47,067.67


Us Cellular - Oct Ach/Us Cellular - Oct Ach/Us 


Cellular - Oct Ach


HC002087 004 Us Cellular - Ach10/30/2020  1,874.36


P Otteson-Customer RefundCK002798 048 PAUL OTTESON10/29/2020  157.69


Solenis-PraestolCK002799 090 SOLENIS LLC10/29/2020  4,007.50


City Stoton-Oct Retirement/City Stoton-Oct 


Retirement/City Stoton-Oct Retirement


CK002800 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON10/29/2020  24,611.86


Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-FuelCK002801 451 INSIGHT FS10/29/2020  162.87


Boardman-Atty feesCK027145 058 BOARDMAN CLARK  LLP10/1/2020  2,255.00


Harvest Farms-Emb CreditsCK027146 084 HARVEST FARMS, LLC10/1/2020  1,100.00


Border States-Supplies/Border 


States-Inventory/Border States-Supplies


CK027147 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY10/1/2020  4,192.53


Elec Testing-Glove TestsCK027148 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC.10/1/2020  47.18


Resco-Inventory/Resco-Supplies/Resco-Inventory/R


esco-Supplies


CK027149 400 RESCO10/1/2020  4,012.45


Insight-Diesel/Insight-Diesel/Insight-DieselCK027150 451 INSIGHT FS10/1/2020  170.50


Stella Jones-RepairsCK027151 620 STELLA JONES CORPORATION10/1/2020  10,487.00


Border States-Inventory/Border 


States-Supplies/Border States-Supplies


CK027152 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY10/8/2020  1,000.75


M Rigdon-Deposit RefundCK027153 416 MICHAEL RIGDON10/8/2020  269.67


Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/In


sight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel


CK027154 451 INSIGHT FS10/8/2020  1,049.25


D Labanow-Construction RefundCK027155 928 DALE LABANOW10/8/2020  103.45


A Berg-Deposit RefundCK027156 239 ANNA BERG10/8/2020  242.51


Resco-Inventory/Resco-SuppliesCK027157 400 RESCO10/8/2020  1,232.89







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


11:21AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 11/3/2020


Tuesday, November 03, 2020


Description


J Mell-Customer Refund/J Mell-Customer Refund/J 


Mell-Customer Refund


CK027158 650 JOHN MELL10/8/2020  313.74


S King-Deposit RefundCK027159 876 SANDY KING10/8/2020  810.46


Diggers Hotline-Sept LocatesCK027160 143 DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC.10/8/2020  734.45


Inkworks-AdsCK027161 166 INKWORKS, INC.10/8/2020  506.66


Posm-SoftwareCK027162 284 POSM SOFT LLC10/8/2020  2,000.00


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest Tree-TrenchingCK027163 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC10/8/2020  6,365.00


PSC-Assessments/PSC-AssessmentsCK027164 491 PUBLIC SVC. COMM. OF WI.10/8/2020  17,770.51


City Stoton-Sept Aflac/City Stoton-Oct Life Ins/City 


Stoton-Aug Legal Shield/City Stoton-Oct Life 


Ins/City Stoton-19 Const Aug/City Stoton-Sept 


Water Twr/City Stoton-Sept Rent/City Stoton-19 


Const Aug/City Stoton-Oct Life Ins/City Stoton-Oct 


Life Ins+


CK027165 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON10/8/2020  254,252.76


Hooper-Pole ReplacementCK027166 386 HOOPER CORPORATION10/8/2020  5,478.05


S Felio-Solar Credit RefundCK027167 964 STEVE FELIO10/8/2020  333.53


Dept of Admin-Q3 Pub Ben feesCK027168 539 DEPT OF ADMIN-WISMART VENDOR #396028867 E10/15/2020  16,301.05


First Supply-SuppliesCK027169 550 FIRST SUPPLY LLC MADISON10/15/2020  841.20


Utility-Twr 3 QtrCK027170 362 UTILITY SERVICE CO., INC10/15/2020  7,301.66


Strand-General Eng.CK027171 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.10/15/2020  7,126.32


Vining Sparks-SafekeepingCK027172 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P.10/15/2020  162.00


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-TrenchingCK027173 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC10/15/2020  1,419.50


Border States-InventoryCK027174 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY10/15/2020  196.00


DunkirkDam-Customer RefCK027175 781 DUNKIRK WATER POWER CO LLC10/15/2020  307.96


Stoton Elec-Bulk Water/Stoton Elec-Bulk WaterCK027176 146 STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTIL.10/15/2020  567.68







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


11:21AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 11/3/2020


Tuesday, November 03, 2020


Description


Resco-Inventory/Resco-Inventory/Resco-Inventory/


Resco-Inventory/Resco-tds materials


CK027177 400 RESCO10/15/2020  1,426.62


Rosenbaum-Topsoil.sandCK027178 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.10/15/2020  969.45


Stella Jones-Inventory/Stella Jones-Inventory/Stella 


Jones-Inventory/Stella Jones-Inventory


CK027179 620 STELLA JONES CORPORATION10/15/2020  32,974.00


GLS-Sept Locates/GLS-Sept Locates/GLS-Sept 


Locates


CK027180 727 GLS UTILITY LLC10/15/2020  34,321.00


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tre


nching/Midwest-Trenching


CK027181 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC10/22/2020  2,501.25


Resco-Inventory/Resco-Inventory/Resco-InventoryCK027182 400 RESCO10/22/2020  3,288.29


C Wethal-Customer RefundCK027183 103 CHAD OR SARAH WETHAL10/22/2020  320.05


City Stoton-StormwaterCK027184 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON10/22/2020  53,456.63


Midwest-Wa Meter TestsCK027185 232 MIDWEST TESTING LLC10/22/2020  1,065.00


G Fox-Harrison St repair/G Fox-208 S Monroe StCK027186 959 G. FOX & SON, INC.10/22/2020  3,475.00


Parisi-Pay Request 1CK027187 960 PARISI CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.10/22/2020  112,491.68


A Gernon-Customer RefundCK027188 032 ALYSSA OR JOSHUA GERNON10/22/2020  91.32


R Gaus-Customer RefundCK027189 097 RAYMOND GAUS10/22/2020  25.38


D Heggestad-Customer RefundCK027190 238 DON HEGGESTAD10/22/2020  53.46


Oakland-Customer RefundCK027191 321 OAKLAND PROPERTY SERVICES J WILLIAMS10/22/2020  320.23


C Eifert-Customer RefundCK027192 765 CHAUNTE EIFERT10/22/2020  84.08


Inkworks-Service DiscCK027193 166 INKWORKS, INC.10/22/2020  165.75


R Givens-Customer RefundCK027194 387 REGINAL GIVENS10/22/2020  15.87


Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-FuelCK027195 451 INSIGHT FS10/22/2020  1,022.07


W Mansfield- Customer RefundCK027196 558 WILLIAM MANSFIELD10/22/2020  122.99







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


11:21AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


5 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 11/3/2020


Tuesday, November 03, 2020


Description


A Saccaro-Customer RefundCK027197 796 AMELIA SACCARO10/22/2020  53.43


Great West-Oct A Def CompCK101989 463 GREAT-WEST10/1/2020  1,487.51


SEERA-CTC fundsCK101990 603 SEERA-WIPFLI LLP10/1/2020  5,677.83


N Shore Bk-Oct A Def CompCK101991 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.10/1/2020  300.00


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing


CK101992 852 INFOSEND, INC10/1/2020  3,339.26


MEUW-Training Program/MEUW-Training 


Program/MEUW-Training Program


CK101993 995 MEUW10/1/2020  5,252.00


Great West-Oct B Def CompCK101994 463 GREAT-WEST10/15/2020  1,489.42


Seera-Ctc fundsCK101995 603 SEERA-WIPFLI LLP10/15/2020  5,552.89


CGC-Testing/CGC-TestingCK101996 718 CGC, INC.10/15/2020  223.50


N Shore Bank-Oct B Def CompCK101997 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.10/15/2020  300.00


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing


CK101998 852 INFOSEND, INC10/15/2020  3,390.65


Forster-Tech Assist/Forster-Roby Rd & Us 


51/Forster-AT & T Attach/Forster-Tds make 


ready/Forster-Scada panel/Forster-East Sub 


Rep/Forster-Tech Assist/Forster-Tech Assist


CK101999 157 FORSTER ELEC. ENG.,INC.10/29/2020  22,860.85


B Hoops-Expense ReimbCK102000 181 BRIAN HOOPS10/29/2020  18.05


Great West-Oct C Def CompCK102001 463 GREAT-WEST10/29/2020  1,535.16


N Shore Bk-Oct C Def CompCK102002 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.10/29/2020  300.00


Company Total  1,801,648.97







Date:


Time:


User:


Tuesday, October 06, 2020


10:12AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000120'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


Import ID: 009010 Import # : 0000000120


-4.12652 000000  - ELECTRIC MOTOR WAREHOUSE472 09/23/2020CHEMICAL TANK EXHAUST FAN 87007450


-96.00833 000000  - BATTERIES PLUS #0583526 09/02/2020BATTERY REFUND 82007460


 10.72642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230395760381824 09/11/2020SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 6.00903 000000  - DOT E PAY WIN ACC922 09/28/2020Accident report for WO invoicing 35507430


 60.00920 000000  - MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILIT089 09/01/2020Training Expense - Registration - MEUW Accounting and CS Seminar 36807430


 10.72642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230392228186824 09/04/2020SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 10.72642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230398670991824 09/14/2020SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 26.31921 000000  - STAPLS7313776267000001352 09/14/2020GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES - BILLING 36807450


 35.09851 000000  - STAPLS7313776267000001352 09/14/2020GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES - BILLING 36807460


 11.71233 001099  - STAPLS7313776267000001352 09/14/2020GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES - BILLING 36807430


 73.11921 000000  - STAPLS7313776267000001352 09/14/2020GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES - BILLING 36807430


 10.72642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230390859392824 09/18/2020SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 46.44921 000000  - STAPLS7313776267000002352 09/21/2020GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES - BILLING 36807430


 16.72921 000000  - STAPLS7313776267000002352 09/21/2020GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES - BILLING 36807450


 76.71921 000000  - PITNEY BOWES PI889 09/30/2020General office supplies - billing 36807430


 78.65921 000000  - MSFT   E0400BXOR0836 09/03/2020SAAS LICENSING - MONTHLY - O365 - SKYPE TIER II 52507430


 27.61921 000000  - PITNEY BOWES PI889 09/30/2020General office supplies - billing 36807450


 28.60921 000000  - MSFT   E0400BXOR0836 09/03/2020SAAS LICENSING - MONTHLY - O365 - SKYPE TIER II 52507450


 7.44233 001099  - STAPLS7313776267000002352 09/21/2020GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES - BILLING 36807430


 2.50851 000000  - MSFT   E0400BXPDE836 09/03/2020SAAS LICENSING - MONTHLY - O365 - ONEDRIVE 52507460


 26.05903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 09/03/2020Credit card processing - Online MyAccount 52507450


 34.74840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 09/03/2020Credit card processing - Online MyAccount 52507460


 11.59233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 09/03/2020Credit card processing - Online MyAccount 52507430


 5.50921 000000  - MSFT   E0400BXPDE836 09/03/2020SAAS LICENSING - MONTHLY - O365 - ONEDRIVE 52507430


 2.00921 000000  - MSFT   E0400BXPDE836 09/03/2020SAAS LICENSING - MONTHLY - O365 - ONEDRIVE 52507450


 35.75851 000000  - MSFT   E0400BXOR0836 09/03/2020SAAS LICENSING - MONTHLY - O365 - SKYPE TIER II 52507460


 22.29851 000000  - STAPLS7313776267000002352 09/21/2020GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES - BILLING 36807460


 12.28233 001099  - PITNEY BOWES PI889 09/30/2020General office supplies - billing 36807430


 72.37903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 09/03/2020Credit card processing - Online MyAccount 52507430


 36.82851 000000  - PITNEY BOWES PI889 09/30/2020General office supplies - billing 36807460


 18.81921 000000  - AMAZON.COM MU6CK0H42422 09/08/2020IT PERIPHERALS - JWEISS 52507450


 23.52851 000000  - AMAZON.COM MU6CK0H42422 09/08/2020IT PERIPHERALS - JWEISS 52507460


 26.00642 000000  - WI STATE HYGIENE LAB675 09/02/2020FLUORIDE SAMPLING 74007450


 321.47933 000000  - KUNES COUNTRY SUPERSTORE543 09/28/2020TRUCK 13 REPAIR 52007430


 71.36934 000000  - AMAZON.COM MK21U6LC1 AMZN422 09/30/2020BUCKET TRUCK WHEEL CHOCKS 52007430


 380.12934 000000  - TEREX USA172 09/03/2020TRUCK 5 REPAIRS 40007430


 51.72921 000000  - AMAZON.COM MU6CK0H42422 09/08/2020IT PERIPHERALS - JWEISS 52507430


 3.27594 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 09/14/2020FIELD PROPANE REFILLS 52757430


 700.00370 003300  - BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/23/2020ELECTRIC METERS 52007430


 19.99597 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 09/04/2020METER TECH POUCH 52007430


 8.94107.14 000000 190022UA - 1ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 09/04/2020STRAPS 52007430


 16.83921 000000  - AMAZON.COM MU80U8WE0 AMZN422 09/18/2020IT PERIPHERALS - FIELD 52507430







Date:


Time:


User:


Tuesday, October 06, 2020


10:12AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000120'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 6.12921 000000  - AMAZON.COM MU80U8WE0 AMZN422 09/18/2020IT PERIPHERALS - FIELD 52507450


 7.65851 000000  - AMAZON.COM MU80U8WE0 AMZN422 09/18/2020IT PERIPHERALS - FIELD 52507460


 19.84675 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 09/01/2020CURB STOP REPAIR PARTS 87007450


 25.70677 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY 01WISTG148 09/02/2020PAINT SUPPLIES FOR HYRDANTS 87007450


 79.11652 000000  - ELECTRIC MOTOR WAREHOUSE472 09/21/2020CHEMICAL TANK EXHAUST FAN 87007450


 15.34933 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 09/10/2020FORKLIFT PROPANE 52757430


 3.26593 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 09/14/2020FIELD PROPANE REFILLS 52757430


 3,164.00107.14 000000 200901XX - 1HYDRO DESIGNS354 09/02/2020CROSS CONNECTIONS 74007450


 1,227.36641 000000  - HAWKINS INC309 09/07/2020CHEMICALS 74007450


 60.00675 000000  - CORE & MAIN LP 233816 09/11/2020CURB STOP WRENCH 74007450


 298.00642 000000  - NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE- IN974 09/14/2020REGULATORY LAB ANALYSIS 74007450


 170.38642 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 09/25/2020WATER TESTING SUPPLIES 74007450


 53.07903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 09/03/2020Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 19.10903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 09/03/2020Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507450


 25.47840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 09/03/2020Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507460


 8.51233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 09/03/2020Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 1.10921 000000  - MSFT   E0400BXDE9836 09/03/2020SAAS LICENSING - MONTHLY - O365 - SKYPE TIER I 52507430


 0.40921 000000  - MSFT   E0400BXDE9836 09/03/2020SAAS LICENSING - MONTHLY - O365 - SKYPE TIER I 52507450


 0.50851 000000  - MSFT   E0400BXDE9836 09/03/2020SAAS LICENSING - MONTHLY - O365 - SKYPE TIER I 52507460


 1,588.72641 000000  - HAWKINS INC309 09/25/2020CHEMICALS 74007450


 595.53831 000000  - MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT GROUP994 09/21/2020JOYSTICK FOR BOOM CONTROLS 82007460


 669.00107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/07/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 1,097.29107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/23/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 1,654.17107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/25/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 65.00594 000000  - STUART C IRBY355 09/30/2020LAG SCREWS 41007430


 948.80107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/25/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 140.84932 000000  - JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY169 09/24/2020ANNUAL FIRE MAINT 41007450


 176.05834 000000  - JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY169 09/24/2020ANNUAL FIRE MAINT 41007460


 179.00232 001099  - BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/25/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-BORDER STATES 41007430


 234.39107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/25/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 140.74107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/25/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 139.00232 001099  - BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/25/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-BORDER STATES 41007430


 2,124.27232 001099  - MILLENNIUM787 09/28/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-MILLENNIUM 41007430


 100.84232 001099  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 087134 09/29/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-CRESCENT 41007430


 4,336.20232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 09/30/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 60.00107.14 000000 190212XX - 1STUART C IRBY355 09/30/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 121.25232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 09/30/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-IRBY 41007430


 627.55232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 09/30/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-IRBY 41007430


 41.00107.14 000000 190212XX - 1STUART C IRBY355 09/30/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 535.20107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/07/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 93.21232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 09/09/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-IRBY 41007430


 24.02107.14 000000 190212XX - 1STUART C IRBY355 09/09/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 69.00934 000000  - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT994 09/01/2020FORKLIFT MAINT 41007430


 194.00232 001099  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 087134 09/01/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-CRESCENT 41007430







Date:


Time:


User:


Tuesday, October 06, 2020


10:12AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000120'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 2,904.44232 001099  - FIRST SUPPLY WFPG MAD550 09/02/2020WATER INVENTORY-FIRST SUPPLY 41007450


 456.96232 001099  - BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/04/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-BORDER STATES 41007430


 9,152.50107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/14/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 524.88232 001099  - BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/14/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-BORDER STATES 41007430


 263.54107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/14/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 1,428.77232 001099  - BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/14/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-BORDER STATES 41007430


 770.93107.14 000000 190212XX - 1BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/14/2020TDS EXPENDITURES 41007430


 69.00934 000000  - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT994 09/24/2020FORKLIFT MAINT 41007430


 280.50932 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 09/16/2020JANITORIAL 40007430


 102.00932 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 09/16/2020JANITORIAL 40007450


 127.50834 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 09/16/2020JANITORIAL 40007460


 4,282.23831 000000  - JET VAC ENVIRONMENTAL528 09/18/2020TELEVISING TRACTOR AND CAMERA REPAIR 82007460


 171.60232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 09/04/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-IRBY 41007430


 11,933.42232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 09/23/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-IRBY 41007430


 4,591.81232 001099  - BORDER STATES INDUSTRIES327 09/25/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-BORDER STATES 41007430


 596.60232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 09/30/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY-IRBY 41007430


 91.92107.14 000000 190022UA - 1ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 09/17/2020BRACKET MOUNTING HARDWARE 69307430


 31.50921 000000  - SQ  FOSDAL HOME BAKERY601 09/24/2020DONUTS FOR CLASS 69307430


 64.98831 000000  - AMZN MKTP US MU46R3IG1422 09/09/2020JETTING AND TELEVISING RADIOS 82007460


 387.31932 000000  - JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY169 09/24/2020ANNUAL FIRE MAINT 41007430


 211.55834 000000  - JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY169 09/23/2020ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 82007460


 534.86833 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 09/24/2020AERATION BLOWER INLET FILTERS 82007460


 385.12833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 09/29/2020LAB SUPPLIES 83007460


 57.37594 000000  - AMZN MKTP US MM0Y839B0422 09/01/2020TOWELS 41007430


 62,902.34Total:







Stoughton Utilities 
Financial Summary 


September 2020 YTD 
Overall Summary: 
YTD 2020 operating income is $1,000,000 up $16,500 from 2019. Electric is up 
$62,300. Water is down $42,800. Wastewater is down $2,900. 
 
Electric Summary: 
2020 operating income was $455,000 up $62,300 from the prior year YTD. Sales 
revenues were down $106,300 but were offset in full by reduced power costs. YTD kWh 
sales are down 3.4 million, or 3.1%. The decline in sales revenue is due to lower 
industrial power sales. September accounted for approximately 44% of the reduced 
kWh sales.  
 
Non-power operating expenses are up $115,700 YTD, or 4.5%. Underground line 
expenses are up $127,600 over 2019 YTD due to the TDS project. These additional 
expenses have been made up in part by lower payroll, technology, and other costs in 
2020. 
 
The rate of return is currently 2.86% compared to 2.5% at this point in time in 2019. 
Unrestricted cash balances are $5.1 million (4.1 months of sales).  
 
Water Summary: 
Operating revenues were up $12,700 or 0.7%. Total gallons sold YTD is running 1.0% 
lower than 2019. Residential sales accounts for the increase in revenues.     
 
Operating expenses were up $55,500, or 3.9%, compared to the prior year. $21,100 of 
the extra expenses is from labor and benefit expenses. The remaining expense is 
mostly from increased locate expenses from the TDS project. 
 
The rate of return is currently 2.83% compared to 3.49% at this point in time in 2019. 
Unrestricted cash balances are $0.8 million (4.2 months of sales).  
 
Wastewater Summary: 
2020 operating revenues were up $43,400 YTD, or 2.7%, from 2019. Regular sales 
were up $110,200 but surcharge revenues were down $66,800. The additional sales 
revenue is from residential customers.  
 
Operating expenses were $1,400,800, which was up $46,300, or 3.4%, from the prior 
year. $25,700 of the increase is from operating and maintenance labor in 2020. 
Unrestricted cash balances were $0.6 million (3.6 months of sales).  
 
Submitted by: Ryan Wiesen 







Electric Water Wastewater Combined
Assets
Cash & Investments 6,637,439$         2,242,630$         2,097,457$         10,977,526$       
Customer A/R 1,702,759           237,781              235,266              2,175,806           
Other A/R 166,302              509                      (1,271)                 165,540              
Other Assets 829,428              133,151              15,682                 978,261              
Plant in Service 30,715,429         16,818,920         31,591,918         79,126,266         
Accumulated Depreciation (15,297,078)        (5,850,797)          (12,890,426)        (34,038,301)        
Plant in Service - CIAC 3,814,289           7,962,587           -                      11,776,876         
Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (1,945,735)          (2,359,487)          -                      (4,305,223)          
Construction Work in Progress 480,607              428,549              664,149              1,573,305           
GASB 68 Deferred Outflow 1,042,969           354,076              431,889              1,828,934           
Total Assets 28,146,409$       19,967,918$       22,144,664$       70,258,991$       


Liabilities + Net Assets
Accounts Payable 320,533$            65,717$              45,059$              431,309$            
Payable to City of Stoughton 406,435              333,000              -                      739,435              
Interest Accrued (822)                    31,877                 36,852                 67,907                 
Other Liabilities 782,332              86,741                 97,342                 966,416              
Long-Term Debt 3,826,286           3,716,302           3,658,266           11,200,854         
Net Assets 22,076,671         15,484,813         18,042,292         55,603,776         
GASB 68 Deferred Inflow 734,974              249,468              264,852              1,249,294           
Total Liabilities + Net Assets 28,146,409$       19,967,918$       22,144,664$       70,258,991$       


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Balance Sheets


 As of September 30, 2020







 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:
Sales 11,176,494$            1,726,979$              1,595,189$              14,498,661$            
Other 133,843                    48,826                      37,916                      220,584                    
   Total Operating Revenue: 11,310,336$            1,775,804$              1,633,105$              14,719,245$            


Operating Expense:
Purchased Power 8,260,898                -                             -                             8,260,898                
Expenses (Including Taxes) 1,322,161                746,250                    748,278                    2,816,689                
PILOT 353,250                    333,000                    -                             686,250                    
Depreciation 919,053                    383,805                    652,500                    1,955,358                
   Total Operating Expense: 10,855,362$            1,463,055$              1,400,778$              13,719,194$            


     Operating Income 454,974$                 312,749$                 232,327$                 1,000,051$              


Non-Operating Income 237,139                    14,143                      21,941                      273,223                    
Non-Operating Expense (73,841)                     (65,214)                     (73,728)                     (212,784)                  


      Net Income 618,272$                 261,678$                 180,540$                 1,060,490$              


 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:
Sales 11,282,820$            1,712,346$              1,484,966$              14,480,133$            
Other 120,816                    50,789$                    104,764$                 276,369                    
   Total Operating Revenue: 11,403,636$            1,763,136$              1,589,730$              14,756,502$            


Operating Expense:
Purchased Power 8,532,109                -                             -                             8,532,109                
Expenses (Including Taxes) 1,241,466                697,532                    709,462                    2,648,460                
PILOT 344,997                    328,500                    -                             673,497                    
Depreciation 892,350                    381,573                    645,003                    1,918,926                
   Total Operating Expense: 11,010,922$            1,407,605$              1,354,465$              13,772,992$            


     Operating Income 392,714$                 355,530$                 235,265$                 983,510$                 


Non-Operating Income 313,416                    29,539                      117,512                    460,467                    
Non-Operating Expense (110,873)                  (34,497)                     (83,250)                     (228,620)                  


      Net Income 595,257$                 350,572$                 269,527$                 1,215,356$              


September 30, 2019


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement


September 30, 2020


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement







 
Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 454,974$            312,749$            


Average Utility Plant in Service 30,126,403         16,691,810         
Average Accumulated Depreciation (14,637,878)        (5,566,633)          
Average Materials and Supplies 313,390              41,410                
Average Regulatory Liability (77,564)               (119,802)             
Average Customer Advances 159,362              -                      


Average Net Rate Base 15,883,713$       11,046,785$       


September 2020 Rate of Return 2.86% 2.83%


September 2019 Rate of Return 2.50% 3.49%


December 2019 Rate of Return 2.87% 4.65%


Authorized Rate of Return 4.90% 5.00%


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Rate of Return


Year-to-Date September 30, 2020







Electric September 2020


Unrestricted (4.1 months sales) 5,096,215$           
Bond Reserve 460,722$              
Redemption Fund (P&I) 336,261$              
Depreciation 25,000$                
Designated 719,241$              
Total 6,637,439$           


Water September 2020


Unrestricted (4.2 months sales) 804,382$              
Bond Reserve 340,710$              
Redemption Fund (P&I) 192,587$              
Depreciation 25,000$                
Construction 461,389$              
Designated 418,562$              
Total 2,242,630$           


Wastewater September 2020


Unrestricted (3.6 months sales) 642,593                
DNR Replacement 1,156,249             
Redemption Fund (P&I) 167,990                
Depreciation 33,283                  
Designated 97,342                  
Total 2,097,457             


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Cash and Investments Summary


 As of September 30, 2020


$5,096,215 , 77%


$460,722 , 7%
$336,261 , 5%
$25,000 , 0% $719,241 , 11%


Electric Cash - September 2020 


Unrestricted (4.1 months sales) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Designated


$804,382 , 36%


$340,710 , 15%$192,587 , 9%$25,000 , 1%


$461,389 , 20%


$418,562 , 19%


Water Cash - Septembers 2020


Unrestricted (4.2 months sales) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Construction Designated


642,593 , 31%


1,156,249 , 55%


167,990 , 8%


33,283 , 1%


97,342 , 5%


Wastewater Cash - September 2020


Unrestricted (3.6 months sales) DNR Replacement
Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation
Designated







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2019 KwH Purchased 2019 2020 KwH Purchased 2020 Peak 2019 Peak 2020


January 12,752,096 13,363,141 11,728,250 12,391,530 26,165 21,586


February 11,560,908 11,896,849 11,129,324 11,416,153 23,038 21,887


March 11,641,186 11,972,418 10,906,593 11,186,342 23,235 19,372


April 10,254,850 10,595,041 9,652,850 9,951,790 19,359 18,601


May 10,504,194 10,786,337 10,102,735 10,421,886 20,621 26,854


June 11,795,758 12,089,761 12,748,338 13,073,380 29,286 31,260


July 15,562,750 16,073,028 15,365,712 15,828,753 34,354 33,912


August 13,270,957 13,655,459 13,804,851 14,219,367 29,991 33,826


September 11,750,230 12,106,055 10,260,326 10,576,447 26,452 22,659


October


November


December


TOTAL 109,092,929 112,538,089 105,698,979 109,065,648


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2019 Gallons Pumped 2019 2020 Gallons Pumped 2020 2019 2020


January 36,143,000 39,813,000 34,224,000 40,776,000 1,466,000 1,719,000


February 33,948,000 36,797,000 34,338,000 36,978,000 1,443,000 1,424,000


March 36,020,000 38,991,000 37,037,000 41,146,000 1,419,000 1,468,000


April 34,264,000 37,730,000 34,367,000 39,015,000 1,465,000 1,513,000


May 37,645,000 40,546,000 34,896,000 39,801,000 1,557,000 1,533,000


June 38,429,000 43,316,000 36,384,000 44,175,000 2,109,000 1,818,000


July 41,307,000 46,203,000 40,745,000 47,721,000 2,049,000 2,226,000


August 39,742,000 43,446,000 44,598,000 51,115,000 1,681,000 2,246,000


September 37,863,000 42,389,000 35,753,000 41,605,000 1,633,000 1,721,000


October


November


December


TOTAL 335,361,000 369,231,000 332,342,000 382,332,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2019 Gallons Gallons 2019 2020 Gallons Gallons 2020 2019 2020


January 24,591,000 36,827,000 25,995,000 33,824,000 3.10 1.92


February 23,125,000 33,032,000 25,176,000 30,702,000 3.19 1.18


March 25,549,000 43,136,000 26,467,000 39,457,000 0.96 3.00


April 24,363,000 34,347,000 26,172,000 35,649,000 3.24 3.25


May 25,992,000 42,845,000 26,697,000 38,376,000 6.37 4.50


June 25,984,000 38,913,000 26,867,000 33,801,000 3.19 4.34


July 27,634,000 34,384,000 29,145,000 33,822,000 4.35 3.23


August 26,627,000 36,137,000 31,489,000 29,654,000 5.72 0.85


September 25,721,000 34,272,000 26,690,000 29,324,000 5.19 4.72


October


November


December


TOTAL 229,586,000 333,893,000 244,698,000 304,609,000 35.31 26.99


2020 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater





		2020-11-10 CA-3 Financials.pdf

		Sept 2020 Financial Statements Version.pdf

		Balance Sheets

		Inc Statement Combined

		ROR

		Cash & Investments














CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating subsection (82) relating to 


No Parking Anytime on the west side of Hoel Avenue between Otteson and Odegard Drives. 


Committee Action:    Public Safety committee recommends approval 5-0 on October 27, 2020 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-25-2020 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


November 10, 2020 


November 24, 2020 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1. Sec. 70-176 (82) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is created as follows:  


 


         Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of 


and while actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers 


and while the vehicle is attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in 


case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or 


parts of highways:  


(82) No Parking Anytime on the west side of Hoel Avenue between Otteson & Odegard Drives.  


 


 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


A resolution approving the Summary Report of the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 


(“RDA”) regarding the sale of the property located at 314 West Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


(commonly known as the Marathon site) (the Property”) 
 
Committee Action: 


 
RDA approved the terms of the Offer to Purchase and Counter Offers 


RDA approved 6-0, with Trow abstaining on October 14, 2020 
 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
Property Sale of $72,000 


Anticipated improved value to the tax roll by 12/31/2021 of $900,000 + 


 
File Number: 


 
R-174-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 24, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, prior to the sale of any  real  property,  the RDA  is  required pursuant to Wis. Stat. 


66.1333(9)(a)1.d, to provide a report as to the terms, conditions and other material conditions of the 


transaction to the local legislative body for approval; and 


 


WHEREAS, the RDA has negotiated the sale of the Property; and 


 


WHEREAS, attached is a Summary Report which provides the terms and conditions of the transaction, 


along with a detailed Critical Dates Summary and Closing Checklist, for approval by the City Council; and 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Summary Report and 


attachments submitted by the RDA regarding the terms and conditions of the sale of 314 West Main Street in 


the City of Stoughton is approved. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







SUMMARY REPORT 
By the REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


For the Sale of: 


 
Property: 314 West Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
Buyer: Blake George and/or assigns 


Purchase Price: $72,000.00 


Closing Date: within 30 days after the removal of all contingencies 


 
[Please see attached Critical Dates Summary and Closing Checklist for additional detail.] 


 


Terms: After satisfying all contingencies, Buyer shall purchase the Property and construct 


two four-unit residential buildings on the Property (“Project”). 
 


Conditions: 


The following contingencies shall be removed on or before ninety (90) days after the Effective Date 


(the “Contingency Deadline”), or this Agreement shall, at the Buyer’s option, be null and void and the 


Deposit shall be returned to Buyer. Buyer reserves the right to waive any of Buyer’s contingencies by 


delivering a signed notice of waiver to the RDA. 


 


Buyer or its designated architect, engineer, inspector or other representative, at Buyer’s sole 


cost and expense, being granted access to the Property for a physical inspection of the Property and 


approval by the Buyer of the physical condition of the Property exercised in the use of the Buyer’s 


reasonable opinion and discretion. This contingency does not include testing, defined as the taking of 


materials such as soils, water, air, or other materials from the Property and the laboratory or other 


analysis of those materials. 


 


Buyer will obtain, at Buyer’s sole cost and expense, any environmental assessment, 


investigation or report or update of any prior environmental assessment, investigation or report from 


qualified independent consultants selected by Buyer, at Buyer’s sole expense, which assessment, 


investigations and/or reports are satisfactory to the Buyer, in the use of the Buyer’s reasonable opinion 


and discretion. 


 


Buyer will determine that the Property is or can be, at Buyer’s expense, reasonably served by 


utilities such as electricity, gas, cable, and telephone at a cost that is satisfactory to Buyer in its sole 


discretion. This paragraph in no way obligates the RDA to provide such utilities to the Property and 


Buyer acknowledges the RDA has no obligation to construct or provided any additional utilities. 


 


Buyer shall provide the RDA with evidence of financing for the purchase of the Property and 


construction of the Project in the form of a loan commitment or similar evidence. The RDA 


acknowledges that Buyer’s financing is premised upon receipt of a grant from the Wisconsin 


Economic Development Corporation Brownfields Grant Program. 


 


Other Material Provisions:  


Buyer’s obligations set forth in this Agreement shall survive the Closing Date. 


 


1. Park and Permit Fees. On or before Closing, Buyer shall pay all park and permit 


fees relating to the Project. 


 







2. Buyer Development/Construction Obligations. 


 


(a) Buyer shall construct the Project with a slab on grade foundation with the top of the 


slab at or above surface level. 


 


(b) Buyer shall install a vapor barrier beneath the slab of the building and a passive vapor 


mitigation system will be installed at each building. Buyer shall comply with this and all 


other requirements of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources approval of the 


Materials Management Plan, dated April 24, 2019 as it may be updated and/or revised. 


Buyer agrees to maintain the vapor mitigation system and other requirements as set forth in 


the Access and Indemnification Agreement attached as Exhibit B. 


 


 


Attachments: 


Critical Dates Summary for Vacant Land Offer to Purchase 


Closing Checklist 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


A resolution approving the Summary Report of the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 
(“RDA”) regarding the sale of the property located at 314 West Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 
(commonly known as the Marathon site) (the Property”) 
 
Committee Action: 


 
RDA approved the terms of the Offer to Purchase and Counter Offers 
RDA approved 6-0, with Trow abstaining on October 14, 2020 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
Property Sale of $72,000 
Anticipated improved value to the tax roll by 12/31/2021 of $900,000 + 


 
File Number: 


 
R - -2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 24, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, prior to the sale of any  real  property,  the RDA  is  required pursuant to Wis. Stat. 
66.1333(9)(a)1.d, to provide a report as to the terms, conditions and other material conditions of the 
transaction to the local legislative body for approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the RDA has negotiated the sale of the Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, attached is a Summary Report which provides the terms and conditions of the transaction, 
along with a detailed Critical Dates Summary and Closing Checklist, for approval by the City Council; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Summary Report and 
attachments submitted by the RDA regarding the terms and conditions of the sale of 314 West Main Street in 
the City of Stoughton is approved. 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







SUMMARY REPORT 
By the REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 
For the Sale of: 


 
Property: 314 West Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
Buyer: Blake George and/or assigns 


Purchase Price: $72,000.00 


Closing Date: within 30 days after the removal of all contingencies 
 


[Please see attached Critical Dates Summary and Closing Checklist for additional detail.] 
 


Terms: After satisfying all contingencies, Buyer shall purchase the Property and construct 
two four-unit residential buildings on the Property (“Project”). 


 


Conditions: 
The following contingencies shall be removed on or before ninety (90) days after the Effective Date 
(the “Contingency Deadline”), or this Agreement shall, at the Buyer’s option, be null and void and the 
Deposit shall be returned to Buyer. Buyer reserves the right to waive any of Buyer’s contingencies by 
delivering a signed notice of waiver to the RDA. 


 
Buyer or its designated architect, engineer, inspector or other representative, at Buyer’s sole 


cost and expense, being granted access to the Property for a physical inspection of the Property and 
approval by the Buyer of the physical condition of the Property exercised in the use of the Buyer’s 
reasonable opinion and discretion. This contingency does not include testing, defined as the taking of 
materials such as soils, water, air, or other materials from the Property and the laboratory or other 
analysis of those materials. 


 
Buyer will obtain, at Buyer’s sole cost and expense, any environmental assessment, 


investigation or report or update of any prior environmental assessment, investigation or report from 
qualified independent consultants selected by Buyer, at Buyer’s sole expense, which assessment, 
investigations and/or reports are satisfactory to the Buyer, in the use of the Buyer’s reasonable opinion 
and discretion. 


 
Buyer will determine that the Property is or can be, at Buyer’s expense, reasonably served by 


utilities such as electricity, gas, cable, and telephone at a cost that is satisfactory to Buyer in its sole 
discretion. This paragraph in no way obligates the RDA to provide such utilities to the Property and 
Buyer acknowledges the RDA has no obligation to construct or provided any additional utilities. 


 
Buyer shall provide the RDA with evidence of financing for the purchase of the Property and 


construction of the Project in the form of a loan commitment or similar evidence. The RDA 
acknowledges that Buyer’s financing is premised upon receipt of a grant from the Wisconsin 
Economic Development Corporation Brownfields Grant Program. 


 
Other Material Provisions:  
Buyer’s obligations set forth in this Agreement shall survive the Closing Date. 
 


1. Park and Permit Fees. On or before Closing, Buyer shall pay all park and permit 
fees relating to the Project. 
 







2. Buyer Development/Construction Obligations. 
 


(a) Buyer shall construct the Project with a slab on grade foundation with the top of the 
slab at or above surface level. 
 


(b) Buyer shall install a vapor barrier beneath the slab of the building and a passive vapor 
mitigation system will be installed at each building. Buyer shall comply with this and all 
other requirements of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources approval of the 
Materials Management Plan, dated April 24, 2019 as it may be updated and/or revised. 
Buyer agrees to maintain the vapor mitigation system and other requirements as set forth in 
the Access and Indemnification Agreement attached as Exhibit B. 


 
 
Attachments: 


Critical Dates Summary for Vacant Land Offer to Purchase 
Closing Checklist 


 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Marathon\3OX2367-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist-Sale of 
314 W. Main St. to Blake George.doc 1 
 


CRITICAL DATES SUMMARY 
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 


 
 
Seller:    Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 
 
Buyer:    Blake George and/or assigns  
 
Property: 314 W. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Project: Construction of two (2) four-unit residential buildings 


 
Purchase price:   $72,000.00 
 
Effective Date:   October 21, 2020 
 
Closing Date:   30 days after removal of all of contingences 
 
 


Contingency Description Due Date Status 


Earnest Money 
(Section C.1(a)) 


Buyer to deliver earnest money in amount 
of $5,000 to Title Company within 5 days 
of Effective Date. 


Monday, October 26, 
2020 


Delivered to 
title 
company 
Nov 16, 
2020 


Title Insurance 
Commitment 
(Section D) 


Seller, at Seller’s expense, to provide title 
insurance commitment to Purchaser 
within 20 days after Effective Date. 


Tuesday, November 10, 
2020 


Delivered to 
Buyer on 
November 
10, 2020 


Title Objection Notice 
(Section D) 


 


Buyer to deliver written objections to title 
within 10 days after receipt of the title 
insurance commitment (“Buyer’s Title 
Notice”). 
Seller to give notice of any title objections 
that cannot be removed within five (5) 
days after receipt of Buyer’s Title Notice. 
Buyer elects in writing within 15 days 
thereafter to terminate the Purchase and 
Sale Agreement or waive title objections 
and close. 


Friday, November 20, 
2020 


 


Physical Inspections  
(Section E.1) 


Buyer or its designated architect, 
engineer, inspector or other 
representative, to conduct physical 
inspection of the Property and Buyer to 
remove this contingency on or before 90 
days after the Effective Date. 


Tuesday, January 19, 
2021 


 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Marathon\3OX2367-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist-Sale of 
314 W. Main St. to Blake George.doc 2 
 


Contingency Description Due Date Status 


Environmental 
Assessment 
(Section E.2) 


Buyer to obtain, at Buyer’s sole cost and 
expense, any environmental assessment, 
investigation or report or update of any 
prior environmental assessment, 
investigation or report from qualified 
independent consultants selected by 
Buyer, at Buyer’s sole expense, and 
remove this contingency on or before 90 
days after the Effective Date. 


Tuesday, January 19, 
2021 


 


Utilities 
(Section E.3) 


Buyer to determine that the Property is or 
can be, at Buyer’s expense, reasonably 
served by utilities such as electricity, gas, 
cable, and telephone at a cost that is 
satisfactory to Buyer in its sole discretion, 
and remove this contingency on or before 
90 days after the Effective Date. 


Tuesday, January 19, 
2021 


 


Financing 
(Section E.4) 


Buyer to provide Seller with evidence of 
financing for the purchase of the Property 
and construction of the Project in the form 
of a loan commitment or similar evidence 
on or before 90 days after the Effective 
Date. 


Tuesday, January 19, 
2021 


 


Park and Permit Fees 
(Section I) 


Buyer to pay all park and permit fees on 
or before Closing. 


On or before Closing  


 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Marathon\3OX2367-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist-Sale of 
314 W. Main St. to Blake George.doc 3 
 


CLOSING CHECKLIST 
 
Responsible Parties: 
 
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton (Jamin T. Friedl) Seller 
 
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP (Michelle M. Affatati)    SR (Attorneys for Seller) 
 
Blake George and/or his assigns   Buyer 
 
First American Title Insurance Company   Title Co. 
(Maegan Lorentzen & Mallory Virtue) 
 


 RESPONSIBLE 
PARTY 


DRAFTED/ 
ORDERED 


EXECUTED/ 
DELIVERED 


A.  PRE-CLOSING 
MATTERS/DOCUMENTS    


1. Purchase and Sale Agreement SR X X 


a. Exhibit A-Description of Property  X N/A 


b. Exhibit B-Access and Indemnification 
Agreement  X X 


c. Exhibit C-Environmental Indemnity 
Agreement Seller/Buyer X X 


2. Order title insurance commitment SR X X 


3. Review title insurance commitment SR X X 
4. Deliver copy of resolution of City Council 


approving sale of the Property and 
authorizing execution thereof to Title Co.   


SR   


5. Strict Joint Order Escrow Agreement Title Co.   
6. Provide Seller’s wire transfer instructions to 


Title Co. if net proceeds are to be wired to 
Seller’s account 


Seller/SR   


B.  CLOSING MATTERS/DOCUMENTS    


7. General Warranty Deed  SR   


8. Electronic Real Estate Transfer Tax Return  SR/Title Co.  N/A 


9. Settlement Statement 


a. Buyer and Seller each pay 1/2 of Title 
Co.’s closing fee. 


b. Seller to pay commission to Lee and 
Associates in amount of 6% of purchase 
price less $500. 


Title Co.   







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2020\11-24-2020\Support\Marathon\3OX2367-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist-Sale of 
314 W. Main St. to Blake George.doc 4 
 


 RESPONSIBLE 
PARTY 


DRAFTED/ 
ORDERED 


EXECUTED/ 
DELIVERED 


10. Access and Indemnification Agreement 
(Exhibit B to Purchase and Sale Agreement) SR X X 


11. Owner’s Affidavit SR/Title Co.   


12. Gap Affidavit SR/Title Co.   


13. 1099-S Reporting Form Title Co.   


14. Closing instruction letter SR   


15. Delivery of closing funds to Title Co. Buyer   


16. Disbursement of proceeds; Cash to Seller Title Co.   


C.  POST-CLOSING MATTERS    


17. Record documents with Dane County Register 
of Deeds’ office Title Co.   


18. Buyer to convey copies of all related 
documentation attached to the Access and 
Indemnification Agreement upon completion 
of the Project 


Buyer   


 





		06a-Resolution Marathon Property Sale

		06b-Marathon Sale Resolution - RDA






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving a Connecting Highway Designation agreement between the Wisconsin Department of 


Transportation (DOT) and the City of Stoughton for costs for the maintenance of USH 51 from Hoel 


Avenue to Roby Road. 
 
 


Committee Action: 


 


Finance Committee  
 
 


Fiscal Impact: 


 


$29,000 Annual Income 


 
File Number: 


 
R-175-2020 


 
Date Introduced 


 
November 24, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT) is scheduled to construct roundabouts 


on US Highway 51 at the intersections of Hoel/Silverado, STH 138, and Roby Road, in 2022 (the 


“Project”); and 


 


WHEREAS, the DOT is seeking to modify the Connecting Highway Limits of USH 51 from Hoel 


Avenue to Roby Road; and  


 


WHEREAS, under the attached Agreement for Connecting Highway Change (Agreement) the City will 


be responsible for normal maintenance of this segment of USH 51 upon completion of the Project; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City will receive about $29,000 annually in additional Transportation Aids funding to 


maintain this segment; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to enter into the Agreement for Connecting Highway Change.  


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-- 2020 Resolution approving DOT Connecting Highways Agreement.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  November 18, 2020 


 


To:  Finance Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT) Connecting Highways 


Agreement – USH 51 Hoel Avenue to Roby Road 


 


The DOT has programmed the construction of roundabouts at the following three intersections 


with USH 51: Hoel Avenue/Silverado Drive, STH 138 West, and Roby Road/Deer Point Drive.  


The DOT is seeking to extend the City’s maintenance limits to include the segment of USH 51 


from Hoel Avenue to Roby Road.  Under the agreement, the City will be responsible for 


maintenance of this segment after the roundabouts are constructed.  The City will receive about 


$29,000 annually in additional Transportation Aids funding to maintain this segment. 


 


The DOT will retain responsibility for maintenance of the traffic signal system at Jackson Street.  


Future reconstruction projects in this section will be programmed by the DOT. 


 


A resolution and Revised Agreement is included for your consideration 


 


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 


 


 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance 11-18-2020 - DOT Connecting Highway Agreement.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CONNECTING HIGHWAY DESIGNATION 
  


AGREEMENT FOR  
CONNECTING HIGHWAY CHANGE NUMBER <#>  


PERTAINING TO   
UNITED STATES HIGHWAY (USH) 51  


Hoel Avenue to Roby Road   
CITY OF STOUGHTON  


DANE COUNTY  
  
  
  


1. Introduction  
  


The Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DEPARTMENT) has proposed a Connecting Highway Change in 
the city of Stoughton (CITY) in Dane County, whereby:  
  


  A portion of USH 51 will be designated as a Connecting Highway.    
  


  
2. Statutory Authority of State Highway Change  
  


All determinations and decisions herein and hereafter described are made in accordance with Section 86.32(1) of 
the Wisconsin State Statutes whereby the DEPARTMENT is proposing Connecting Highway Change Number 
<#> to add a segment of Connecting Highway in the CITY.   
  


  
3. Determination and Description of Highway Segment To Be Designated A Connecting Highway       
  


The DEPARTMENT hereby finds, determines and makes this decision that the public good will best be served 
by designating as a Connecting Highway, the highway described as:  


    
Segment 1- USH 51  
  


Beginning at a point on USH 51 from .0.01 North (West) of Hoel Avenue to a point 0.13 North of the 
center of the roundabout at Roby Road and Deer Point Road. Said segment is depicted on Attachment 
1 as Segment 1 and Attachment 2.  


  
The segment length of this addition is 0.93 mile.  
  


  
4. Physical and Effective Date of Change  
  


The physical date for the Connecting Highway designation described in Section 3 shall be the date State Project 
ID 5485-01-78 is complete and open to traffic.  
  
The effective date for the determination action for the Connecting Highway designation described in Section 3 is 
the signature date shown on the bottom of this document.   
  


 
 
 
 
 
 


 Page 1 of 2  







FACILITIES TO BE JURISDICTIONALLY RETAINED BY THE DEPARTMENT  
  
  
The DEPARTMENT retains the traffic signals located at USH 51 and Jackson Street.  The DEPARTMENT will pay 
for the power, perform maintenance, normal repair, emergency repair and operate the signal including timing.  


The DEPARTMENT retains access permitting for this segment. 


 
 


  
  


  
  ____________________________________  ______________  
  Rebecca Burkel, Administrator             
  Division of Transportation System Development  


Date  


  Wisconsin Department of Transportation  
  
  
  


        


   ________________________________________  ________________  
       Tim Swadley, Mayor  


   Stoughton, WI  
                


Date  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Page 2 of 2 







!


Hillcrest
Rd


Shirley
St


Sawyer
Rd


Riverview Dr


Silverado Dr


Kettle Park Way


Kings Lynn Rd


N Van Buren St


Johnson St


Lincoln Ave


Heartb
eat


Cir


Pine
St


Oakridge
Way Kensington 


Sq


N Page St


N Madison St


Nygaard St


t


N Monroe St


N Harrison St


Devonshire Rd


S Madison
St


Gjertson St


Hildebrandt St


St


Hults Service Rd


Palmer St


N Prairie St


King St


N Monroe St


Parkview Dr


N Prairie St


St


son St
S Harrison St


S Van
Buren St


Skyridge
Ct


High
Point Cir


Bristol Ct


Monroe
Ct


Homme Ct


Skinner
Ln


Harrison
Ct


Olson
Ct


t Devonshire
Ct


Ln


Veek Rd


N OF RUTLAND
T05N



DOTTJK

Text Box

Attachment 1



DOTTJK

Callout

Segment 1







90
0


90
5


91
0


91
5


92
0


92
5


93
0


93
5


90
0


90
5


91
0


91
5


92
0


92
5


93
0


93
5


919.31


919.86


920.33


920.80


921.24


921.71


922.18


922.51


922.75


922.96


922.89


921.51


920.40


922.05


922.44


922.99


923.99


923.51


923.68


923.91


923.97


923.84


923.78


923.84


923.92


923.96


923.99


924.00


924.07


919.20


919.56


919.94


920.42


920.94


921.45


921.96


922.47


922.97


923.26


923.24


922.90


922.24


921.35


921.63


922.65


923.52


924.17


924.56


924.68


924.53


924.29


924.05


923.81


923.65


923.62


923.72


923.90


924.07


0.
72


%


1.
02


%
-1


.7
6%


1.
48


%
-0


. 4
7%


0.
35


%


STA 49SB+80.00
EL 919.05


STA 56SB+19.57
EL 921.90


STA 64SB+02.93
EL 924.08


STA 57SB+74.15
EL 923.14


VPC STA 53SB+90.00
VPC EL 922.88


VPC STA 58SB+10.00
VPC EL 923.67


VPI STA 55SB+00.00
VPI EL 924.000


VPI STA 59SB+00.00
VPI EL 925.000


VC
L 


= 
22


0.
00


K 
= 


79
.2


3


VC
L 


= 
18


0.
00


K 
= 


92
.1


0


VPT STA 56SB+10.00
VPT EL 922.07


VPT STA 59SB+90.00
VPT EL 924.57


VPC STA 50SB+69.00
VPC EL 919.69


VPC STA 61SB+48.00
VPC EL 923.82


VPI STA 51SB+00.00
VPI EL 919.91


VPI STA 62SB+25.00
VPI EL 923.46


VPT STA 51SB+31.00
VPT EL 920.23


VPT STA 63SB+02.00
VPT EL 923.73


VC
L 


= 
62


.0
0


K 
= 


20
3.


93


VC
L 


= 
15


4.
00


K 
= 


18
6.


55


HIGH POINT STA 54+70.93
HIGH POINT EL 923.29


HIGH POINT STA 59+46.34
HIGH POINT EL 924.68


LOW POINT STA 62+36.44
LOW POINT EL 923.61


55EB


58EB


59EB


50
N


B
51


N
B


52
N


B
53


N
B


54
N


B


55
N


B
56


NB


58
N


B
59


N
B


60
N


B
61


N
B


62
N


B
63


N
B


64
N


B


11
RB


T


12RBT


13RBT


50
SB


51
SB


52
SB


53
SB


54
SB


55
SB


56
SB


58
SB


59
SB


60
SB


61
SB


62
SB


6 3
S B


55WB


58WB


U
S


H
 5


1


U
S


H
 5


1


LO
T 


1
CS


M
 N


O
. 5


51
5


P A
RT


 L
O


T 
3


CS
M


 N
O


. 8
11


6
LO


T 
1


CS
M


 N
O


. 8
14


4


LO
T  


2 
&


 3
CS


M
 N


O
. 1


24
3 1


LO
TS


 2
JO


H
N


 N
YG


AR
RD


S
VI


RG
IN


 L
A K


E 
ES


TA
TE


S
CO


M
M


ER
CE


 A
DD


IT
IO


N


LO
TS


 1
JO


HN
 N


Y G
AR


RD
S


VI
RG


IN
 L


AK
E 


E S
TA


TE
S


CO
M


M
ER


CE
 A


DD
IT


IO
N


LO
TS


 3
, 4


, &
 5


JO
H


N
 N


YG
AR


RD
S


VI
RG


IN
 L


AK
E 


ES
TA


TE
S


G
AS


 E
AS


EM
EN


T


DRIVEWAY EASEMENT


G
AS


 E
AS


EM
EN


T


 EASEMENT


G
AS


 E
AS


EM
EN


T
G


AS
 E


AS
EM


EN
T


TE
LE


P


SE
EA


UTILITY EASEMENT


TE
LE


PH
O


N
E 


EA
SE


M
EN


T


VISION
CORNER


VISION
CORNER


TE
LE


PH
O


N
E  


EA
SE


M
EN


T


57NEA


56NWA
57NWA


58
NW


A


55
SE


A


56
SE


A


57SEA


56
SW


A


57SWA


W
IS


DO
T/


CA
D


DS
 S


H
EE


T 
44E


H
W


Y:
CO


U
N


TY
:


N
:\


PD
S\


C3
D\


58
45


01
08


\S
HE


ET
SP


LA
N


\0
50


10
0_


PP
.D


W
G


FI
LE


 N
AM


E 
:


6/
4/


20
19


 1
1:


11
 A


M
PL


O
T 


D
AT


E 
:


PL
O


T 
BY


 :
XI


O
N


G
, N


O
U


 S
O


U
A


5


PR
O


JE
CT


 N
O


:
PL


O
T 


N
AM


E 
:  


5


PL
AN


 A
N


D 
PR


O
FI


LE
:


SH
EE


T 
PL


O
T 


SC
AL


E 
:


1 
IN


:1
00


 F
T


58
45


-0
1-


78
U


SH
 5


1
DA


N
E


U
SH


 5
1 


SO
U


TH
BO


U
N


D 
(S


B)


LA
YO


U
T 


N
AM


E 
- 0


50
10


2_
pp


PR
O


PO
SE


D 
SB


 P
RO


FI
LE


EX
IS


TI
N


G 
SB


 P
RO


FI
LE


PR
O


PO
SE


D 
SB


 P
RO


FI
LE


EX
IS


TI
N


G
 S


B 
PR


O
FI


LE


BE
G


IN
 P


RO
JE


CT
ST


A 
49


SB
+8


0.
00


M
AT


CH
 E


XI
ST


IN
G


SA
W


 C
U


T 
RE


Q
'D


EN
D 


CO
N


ST
RU


CT
IO


N
ST


A 
64


SB
+0


2.
93


M
AT


CH
 E


XI
ST


IN
G


SA
W


 C
U


T 
RE


Q
'D


EX
IS


TI
N


G 
R/


W


EX
IS


TI
N


G 
R/


W


PR
O


PO
SE


D 
R/


W


TL
E


PR
O


PO
SE


D
 R


/W


EX
IS


TI
N


G 
R/


W


TL
E


TL
E


PR
O


PO
SE


D 
R/


W


EX
IS


TI
N


G 
R/


W


TL
E


PR
O


PO
SE


D 
R/


W


AL
LI


AN
T 


EN
ER


G
Y 


(G
AS


)


AT
&


T 
W


I


CI
TY


 O
F 


ST
O


U
G


H
TO


N
 (S


AN
IT


AR
Y)


CI
TY


 O
F 


ST
O


U
G


H
TO


N
 (W


AT
ER


)


M
CI


 M
ET


RO


CH
AR


TE
R 


(C
O


M
M


)


CI
TY


 O
F 


ST
O


U
G


H
TO


N
 (E


LE
CT


RI
C)


AT
&


T 
W


I


AL
LI


AN
T 


EN
ER


G
Y 


(G
AS


)


M
CI


 M
ET


RO


CH
AR


TE
R 


(C
O


M
M


)
AT


&
T 


W
I


CI
TY


 O
F 


ST
O


U
G


H
TO


N
 (E


LE
CT


RI
C)



DOTTJK

Polygonal Line



DOTTJK

Callout

Connecting highway limits



DOTTJK

Text Box

Attachment 2





		07a-R-- 2020 Resolution approving DOT Connecting Highways Agreement

		07b-Finance 11-18-2020 - DOT Connecting Highway Agreement

		07c-Connecting Highway Limits Agreement 10-26-2020 - package






 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Police Department 2020-2021 


Union Contract. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
     
File Number: 


 
R-176-2020 


 
Date Introduced:   November 24, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the Mayor & the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management received a request to approve 


the Police Department 2021-2022 Union Contract and, 


 


 


WHEREAS, the Mayor & the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management recommend approval 


unanimously to approve the Police Department 2021-2022 Union Contract, now therefore 


 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be hereby 


authorized and directed to approve the Police Department 2021-2022 Union Contract. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote    ______ 


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


 


                                                                                  


Tim Swadley, Mayor                   Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:     _______    Override  Vote    _______ 


 


 


 







                                                                                                                 


   


TENTATIVE AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE CITY OF STOUGHTON AND 


STOUGHTON POLICE ASSOCIATION WPPA/LEER 


 


11/11/20 


 


1. Amend Article VI – WAGES & HOURS OF WORK; as follows: 
 


Section 1. The salaries of employees covered by this Agreement shall be as provided in 


Appendix “A” attached hereto and made a part of this agreement.  Wage adjustments 


shall be as of January 1 of each year unless otherwise mutually agreed upon. 
 


Section 8.  The Chief of Police shall post a notice on November 20 1 of each year and 


accept requests for shift changes within the last first ten (10) days of November. Shift 


changes shall be announced by December 1 and shall be effective the following January 


1. 


 


In making shift assignments, employee preference shall be considered in accordance with 


seniority within the employee’s classification. This procedure shall also apply to 


vacancies created during the year. 


 


2. Amend Article VII – HOLIDAYS; as follows: 
 


  Add – One Additional Floating Holiday (total 3 floating holidays) 


 


3. Amend Article IX – UNIFORM ALLOWANCE; as follows: 
 


  Section 1. Increase uniform allowance by $50.00 each year of a successor agreement. 


 


Section 2. Employees shall be provided with ballistic vests and outer vest carriers.  


Vests shall be replaced according the manufacturer’s specifications. If a ballistic vest is 


purchased for the employee, the employee shall wear it while on duty and in uniform, 


unless otherwise excused by the Chief of Police or his/her designee.  The Chief shall 


approve the design of the vest carriers 


 


4.  Amend Article X – VACATION; as follows: 


 


Section 5.  As soon as practicable after shift announcements are made, a master 


vacation pick schedule will be posted. Prior to December 31st of each year, each 


employee, by seniority, shall pick up to twelve (12) days of vacation in any 


configuration. Upon completing this first pick, all employees, by seniority, may pick any 


number of their remaining vacation days in any configuration prior to March 1st. After 


March 1st, any remaining days employees may have can be taken on a first-come, first-


serve basis without regard to seniority throughout the year. When picking their vacation 


days, the employee shall respond within 48 hours of the initial posting or they will lose 


that pick.  


  


During this procedure, all intended vacation picks shall be accessible (posted as a single 


master copy) so employees do not overlap vacation allotments. 


 







                                                                                                                


For the purpose of this Section, a vacation pick year shall commence on March 1st and 


end on the last day of February January 1 and end on December 31. 


 


 


5. Appendix A –Wages 


 


2021  Increase wages rates for across the board from 2020 by Two Percent (2%) 


 


2022    Increase wages rates for across the board from 2021 by One and one-half Percent   


 (1.5%) 


 


 If the City provides a cost of living wage adjustment to all City employees greater  


than One and One-half Percent (1.5%) for calendar year 2022, the City will 


provide the same cost of living wage adjustment to the bargaining unit employees. 


 


6. The City and the Association will meet and confer in 2021 to work on a potential 


Memorandum of Understanding with respect to City reimbursement of certain 


educational expenses. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Agreement between the 


 


 


 


 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 


 


 


and the 


 


 


 


STOUGHTON PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOCIATION 


 


WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOCIATION 


 


LAW ENFORCEMENT EMPLOYEE RELATIONS DIVISION 


 


 


 


 


 


      2019-2020 


 


 


 


  







 


2 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


 


 


ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION .....................................................................................................3 


 


ARTICLE II - DUES DEDUCTION ............................................................................................3 


 


ARTICLE III - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS .................................................................................3 


 


ARTICLE IV - SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT  .......................................................................4 


 


ARTICLE V - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE .........................................4 


 


ARTICLE VI - WAGES & HOURS OF WORK .........................................................................5 


 


ARTICLE VII - HOLIDAYS .......................................................................................................7 


 


ARTICLE VIII - LEAVE TIME ...................................................................................................8 


 


ARTICLE IX - UNIFORM ALLOWANCE ................................................................................9 


 


ARTICLE X - VACATION ..........................................................................................................9 


 


ARTICLE XI - INSURANCE ....................................................................................................10 


 


ARTICLE XII - RETIREMENT  ...............................................................................................11 


 


ARTICLE XIII - SICK LEAVE  ................................................................................................11 


 


ARTICLE XIV - LONGEVITY .................................................................................................12 


 


ARTICLE XV - MISCELLANEOUS  .......................................................................................13 


 


ARTICLE XVI - RESIDENCY  .................................................................................................14 


 


ARTICLE XVII - DURATION ..................................................................................................14 


 


APPENDIX “A” WAGE RATES ...............................................................................................15 


 


APPENDIX “B” - INITIAL UNIFORM ISSUE LIST...............................................................16 


  







 


3 


 


AGREEMENT 


 


 


THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into at the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin by and 


between the CITY OF STOUGHTON, a municipal corporation, as Municipal Employer, and the 


Wisconsin Professional Police Association/Law Enforcement Employee Relations Division 


(WPPA/LEER), hereinafter referred to as the “Association.” 


 


ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION 


 


Section 1.  The Municipal Employer recognizes the Association as the exclusive bargaining 


representative of all employees of the Police Department having the power of arrest, excluding the 


Chief of Police, the Lieutenant, Sergeants, or other supervisory personnel, and any part-time 


officer working fewer than 600 hours per year, for the purposes of negotiating in relation to wages, 


hours and conditions of employment. 


 


ARTICLE II - DUES DEDUCTION 


 


Section 1.  Membership in the Association is not compulsory. An employee may join the 


Association and maintain membership therein consistent with its constitution and bylaws.  


No employee will be denied membership because of race, color, creed, age or sex.  This Article is 


subject to the duty of the Wisconsin Employment Relations Commission to suspend the application 


of this Article whenever the Commission finds that the Association has denied an employee 


membership because of race, color, creed, age or sex. 


 


Section 2.  The Association will represent all of the employees in the bargaining unit, members 


and non-members, fairly and equally.  


 


Section 3.  Upon receipt of a voluntary authorization from an employee no less than thirty (30) 


day from the requested beginning date of dues deductions, the Employer agrees to deduct the 


amount of dues certified by the Association from the earnings of the employee filing the 


authorization and pay the amount so deducted to the Association on or before the end of the month 


in which such deduction is made.  An employee may revoke the authorization by giving written 


notice to the Employer and the Association. 


 


Section 4.  The Association shall indemnify and save the Employer harmless against any and all 


claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability which may arise out of any action taken or not 


taken by the Employer for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this Article. 


 


ARTICLE III - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 


 


Section 1.  The Association recognizes the prerogatives the City of Stoughton to operate 


and manage its affairs in all respects in accordance with its responsibility and power of authority 


which the City has not officially abridged, delegated or modified by this Agreement and such 


powers or authority are retained by the City.  These management rights include, but are not limited 


to the following: the rights to plan, direct and control the operation of the work force, determine 







 


4 


 


the size and composition of the work force, to hire, to layoff, to discipline or discharge for just 


cause, to establish and enforce reasonable rules of conduct, to introduce new or improved methods 


of operation, to determine and uniformly enforce minimum standards of performance subject to 


the provisions of this Agreement. 


 


ARTICLE IV - SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 


 


Section 1.  This Agreement is intended to cover all matters relating to wages, hours and all 


other terms and conditions of employment for employees in the bargaining unit, even though the 


same are not specifically mentioned herein.  Each of the parties releases and relinquishes to the 


other the right to require bargaining during the term of the Agreement regarding matters which the 


Agreement is intended to cover and matters which might have been included in the Agreement, 


but were not. 


 


ARTICLE V - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE 


 


Section 1.  A grievance is defined as a complaint by an employee as to the meaning or 


application of this Agreement. Grievances shall be processed according to the following steps. 


 


a) A grievance shall be filed in writing with the Chief of Police or his/her designee by 


either the employee or the Association within seven (7) calendar days from the time 


the employee (or Association) knew or should of known of the event giving rise to 


the grievance.  The Chief or his/her designee shall respond to the grievance in 


writing within seven (7) calendar days. 


 


b) If the grievance is not settled in Step (a), the grievance may be appealed in writing 


to the Mayor within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the Chief's or his/her 


designee's answer. 


 


c) If the Mayor and the Association are unable to adjust the grievance within fourteen 


(14) calendar days after submission of the written grievance, and unless said time 


is extended in writing by mutual agreement, then within the next fourteen (14) 


calendar days either party may make a written request (a copy of which shall be 


delivered to the other party) to the Wisconsin Employment Relations Commission 


for appointment of an arbitrator, pursuant to its rules. Grievances not timely 


submitted for arbitration as provided above shall be barred even though the parties 


continue to discuss said grievances after they are barred from arbitration.  There 


may be no waiver of this provision unless it is mutually agreed in writing. 


 


d) Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted to limit or discourage an employee from 


orally bringing concerns to the Chief's or his/her designee’s attention. 


 


Section 2.  The parties shall equally share the expenses of the arbitrator and court reporter, 


however, a party need not agree to a reporter. 


 







 


5 


 


Section 3.  It is agreed that the decision or award of any arbitrator shall be final and binding 


upon the parties.  The authority of the arbitrator shall be limited to determining questions arising 


under this Agreement.  The arbitrator shall have no authority to modify or change any of the terms 


of this Agreement or to change existing wage rates or to establish a new wage rate.  Each party 


shall bear the expense of preparing and presenting its own case, including its own attorneys' fees 


and witness fees. 


 


Section 4.  It is understood that any individual employee or group of employees shall have 


the right at any time to present grievances to the Employer in accordance with the procedures set 


forth in this Article. 


 


Section 5.  Except as provided in Section 7, the grievance procedure set forth herein shall 


be the exclusive remedy for any complaint of any employee or the Association as to any matter 


involving the interpretation or application of this Agreement. 


 


Section 6.  Notice of Fact-Finding and Disciplinary Action 


 


a) Whenever an employee is under investigation and subject to interrogation for any 


reason which could result in formal disciplinary action, the employee shall be 


informed of the nature of the investigation prior to any such interrogation. The 


employee shall have the right to request that he/she be represented at such 


interrogation by a representative of his/her choosing. The presence of a specific 


representative shall not be used to unduly delay the conduct of such interrogation. 


 


b) Employees will receive a copy of any notice of formal disciplinary action that 


would be placed in any file kept on employee by the police administration or the 


City of Stoughton. For purposes of this provision, a formal disciplinary action shall 


mean any document characterized by the City as a verbal warning, written warning, 


suspension, or reduction in rank. 


 


Section 7.  Section 62.13(5), Wis. Stats. shall be the exclusive remedy for any disciplinary 


action involving suspension, discharge or reduction in rank. 


 


ARTICLE VI - WAGES & HOURS OF WORK 


 


Section 1.  The salaries of employees covered by this Agreement shall be as provided in 


Appendix “A” attached hereto and made a part of this agreement. 


 


Section 2.  When an officer below the rank of Sergeant is assigned as Officer-In-Charge 


(OIC) for a minimum of one (1) consecutive hour, the officer shall receive a differential of Fifty-


Five Cents ($0.55) per hour for all hours so assigned and worked. 


 


Section 3. Overtime.  Eligible bargaining unit employees shall be compensated at a rate of 


time and one-half (1-1/2) based on their current rate of pay for authorized hours worked in excess 


of the scheduled workday or on scheduled days off.  The scheduled workday is eight (8) hours and 


the scheduled workweek is 37.46 hours.  The work schedule shall consist of six (6) days of work 







 


6 


 


followed by three (3) days of rest.  When the need arises to change an employee’s regular clays 


off, the ratio of 2 days worked to 1 day off shall be maintained.  Those employees on a 5-2 schedule 


shall be compensated for the difference of hours generated by the 6-3 schedule.  Overtime shall be 


payable for the pay period in which it is earned, except that compensatory time may be 


accumulated and taken at a later date by the employee upon mutual agreement between the 


employee and the Chief of Police.  There shall be a maximum accumulation of compensatory time 


of one hundred four (104) hours (sixty-nine point thirty-four [69.34] of work hours) and if not 


taken by the last pay period of the year, they shall be paid for at the employee's regular hourly rate.  


Sufficient notice shall be given by the employee when requesting compensatory time off. 


 


Compensatory time is not intended to be used as an extra week of vacation in conjunction 


with the normal vacation, and if this becomes a problem either party (the City or the Association) 


has a right to ask the other party to discuss this issue with them at the earliest possible time. 


 


No part-time employee shall perform bargaining unit work unless regular off-duty 


employees have had an opportunity to perform said work with the exception of those hours 


generated by compensatory time off.  Notification of full-time employees is sufficient through one 


(1) phone call per employee. When a need arises to “order in” employees for such hours, the hours 


shall be worked by contiguous shift employees prior to ordering employees in on scheduled time 


off.  An employee's scheduled hours of work may not be changed without twenty-four (24) hours’ 


notice prior to both the start of the previously scheduled shift and the newly assigned shift unless 


mutually agreeable with the employee affected. 


 


Section 4.  Breaks are given at the discretion of the Chief of Police provided there is no 


substantially unequal treatment. 


 


Section 5.  Employees in the same classification may trade days off by agreement upon 


twenty-four (24) hours’ notice to the Chief of Police. 


 


Section 6.  In addition to their regular rate of pay, officers who work between the hours of 


2:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. shall receive a shift differential of fifty cents ($0.50) for each hour worked 


during that period.  This shift premium shall apply only to tours of duty worked between the 


specified hours; it will not be paid for special assignments, court appearances, etc.  


 


Section 7.  Payday will be bi-weekly.  The Employer shall have sole authority for creating 


and administering this system, including deductions. 


 


Section 8.  The Chief of Police shall post a notice on November 20 of each year and accept 


requests for shift changes within the last ten (10) days of November.  Shift changes shall be 


announced December 1 and shall be effective the following January 1. 


 


In making shift assignments, employee preference shall be considered in accordance with 


seniority within the employee’s classification.  This procedure shall also apply to vacancies created 


during the year. 


 







 


7 


 


Section 9.  When an officer is assigned to act as a Field Training Officer (FTO), the officer 


shall receive a differential of Fifty Cents ($0.50) per hour for each hour worked in such assignment, 


which assignment shall be in writing.  Such assignments, including the selection of the FTO and 


the length of such assignment, shall be in the sole discretion of the Chief of Police or his/her 


designee. 


 


ARTICLE VII – HOLIDAYS 


 


Section 1.  All full-time employees shall be granted the following holidays off with pay: 


 


New Year’s Day 


Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 


Memorial Day 


Independence Day 


Labor Day 


Thanksgiving Day 


Day After Thanksgiving 


Christmas Eve (8 hours) 


Christmas Day 


2 Floating Holidays 


 


 


If a holiday falls on the employee's scheduled day off, the employee shall be paid those 


holiday hours at their hourly rate in the pay period in which the holiday falls. 


 


If a holiday falls on the employee’s day of work or paid leave, the employee will receive 


pay for those holiday hours at the hourly rate or have the option of taking another day off of which 


the day off shall be with the chief's approval. 


 


If an employee works on a holiday he/she shall be paid an additional one-half (1/2) times 


their hourly rate for those hours worked.  Holiday pay shall be in addition to compensation 


normally paid the employee for such hours. 


 


The floating holidays shall be selected by the employee upon sufficient notice to the Chief 


of Police to allow the Chief of Police to arrange a substitute and provided that on the day requested, 


the Chief is able to obtain a substitute. 


 


To receive holiday pay, an employee must have worked or been on an authorized leave the 


days preceding and following the holiday. 


 


Employees who normally work a Monday through Friday schedule shall observe named 


holidays on the same day as the holiday is observed by the City. 


 


 


 


 







 


8 


 


ARTICLE VIII - LEAVE TIME 


 


Section 1.  Funeral Leave.  Each full-time employee shall be entitled to up to three (3) days 


off with regular pay when there is a death in his or her family.  For purposes of this provision, 


immediate family means the employee’s:  spouse, children, mother, father, grandfather, 


grandmother, stepparent, aunts, uncles, foster parents, stepchildren, grandchildren, foster children, 


brothers and their spouses and children, and sisters and their spouses and children. Immediate 


family shall also include the following relatives of the employee’s spouse: mother, father, child, 


grandmother, grandfather, brothers and sisters. 


 


Funeral or Pallbearer (other than immediate family)--Maximum of four (4) hours to attend 


(must be approved by department head), and may, at the option of the employee, be taken as sick 


leave, comp time, vacation or leave without pay. 


 


Section 2. Military Leave.  Employees shall be granted a leave of absence for military 


service in accordance with applicable state and federal laws. 


 


Employees on military leave shall be paid their regular City pay for up to twenty (20) 


working days in any twelve (12) month period. The employee shall remit to the City the 


Employee's military pay, but not to exceed the employee's regular wages, for the period of paid 


leave. Thereafter, the leave shall be unpaid, except to the extent the employee elects to use accrued 


vacation. An employee must return to work before qualifying for a new period of paid military 


leave. 


 


Section 3. Family and Medical Leave.  Eligible employees may take family or medical 


leave to the extent allowed by state or federal FMLA laws. 


 


Section 4. Other Medical Leaves.  An employee requiring leave beyond that available as 


FMLA leave due to his or her own medical condition may request a medical leave of absence. All 


such requests are subject to the approval of the Employer.  Such leaves shall generally not exceed 


ninety (90) calendar days. 


 


Section 5. Personal Leave of Absence.  An employee may request a personal leave of 


absence in accordance with the provisions of Section 6. 


 


Section 6.  All leave of absence requests shall be made to the supervisor or the department 


head as far in advance as possible.  Leave of absence requests must be approved by the department 


head and the Director of Human Resources & Risk Managment.  During the first thirty (30) 


calendar days of an approved leave of absence, the City will continue to pay health and life 


insurance premiums.  Thereafter, except as otherwise provided by state or federal FMLA laws, 


health and life insurance may be continued during a leave of absence provided that the City is 


reimbursed for the insurance premium.  Vacation leave, holiday leave, sick leave and longevity 


bonus, and any other benefit shall not be earned during a leave of absence, except as provided by 


applicable state or federal law. 


 


 







 


9 


 


 


ARTICLE IX - UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 


 


Section 1.  The Employer agrees to provide a uniform allowance of Five Hundred Dollars 


($500.00) per year for uniformed unit employees.  Purchase shall be of items approved by the 


Chief of Police (see Appendix B), and must be approved by the Chief prior to purchase. 


Reimbursement shall be by voucher to the Chief of Police. New employees will be provided an 


initial uniform issue as set forth in Appendix “B,” for the first year of employment.  If an officer 


shall terminate employment with the City within his/her first year of service, all uniform items 


provided by the City shall be immediately returned to the Police Department.  Clothing or 


accessories damaged in the line of duty will be replaced, with the approval of the Police Chief, by 


the City, provided a claim is submitted within seven (7) calendar days of the date the damage is or 


should have been first apparent to the officer. 


 


Section 2.  Employees shall be provided with ballistic vests.  Vests shall be replaced 


according to the manufacturer’s specifications.  If a ballistic vest is purchased for the employee, 


the employee shall wear it while on duty and in uniform, unless otherwise excused by the Chief of 


Police or his/her designee. 


 


Section 3.  If damaged in the line of duty, the Employer shall replace watches and 


eyeglasses or contact lenses in an actual cost not to exceed Fifty Dollars ($50.00), Two Hundred 


Dollars ($200.00) and One Hundred Dollars ($100.00), respectively. 


 


Section 4.  Such firearms and ammunition as are prescribed by the Chief of Police shall be 


paid for by the Employer.  Only prescribed equipment will be carried, except other equipment 


approved by the Chief of Police, but not required by the Chief of Police, may be carried at the 


officer's expense.  All firearms and ammunition paid for by the Employer per this section shall be 


replaced or repaired by the Employer when necessary clue to normal wear and tear through the 


course of employment. 


 


Section 5.  All employees shall report for shift in a neat, cleaned, pressed, and shined 


uniform and prepared to stand inspection by the Chief of Police, Lieutenant or Shift Supervisor. 


 


ARTICLE X – VACATION 


 


Section 1.  All full-time employees shall be granted vacation, with pay as follows: 


 


One (1) week after one (1) full year of service, but less than two (2) years of 


service. 


 


Two (2) weeks - with more than two (2) full years of service, but less than six (6) 


full years of service. 


 


Three (3) weeks - with more than six (6) full years of service. 


 


Four (4) weeks - with more than ten (10) years of service. 







 


10 


 


 


Five (5) weeks - with more than twenty (20) years of service. 


 


For purposes of this Section, a vacation week shall consist of six (6) workdays. 


 


Section 2.  Vacation leave shall not be cumulative and employees shall take their vacation 


following the year earned, except that the City Council or its authorized representative may allow 


earned vacation time to accumulate if an employee gets prior consent, or it is determined to be in 


the best interest of the City. 


 


Section 3.  Employees when separated from City employment will be compensated at their 


regular salary for earned and unused vacation accumulated to their credit. 


 


Section 4.  Department heads or supervisors shall schedule and authorize all vacations, 


giving due consideration to seniority rights, the needs of service, and the remaining staff to perform 


the necessary duties of the department. 


 


Section 5.  Prior to December 31st of each year, each employee, by seniority, shall pick up 


to twelve (12) days of vacation in any configuration.  Upon completing this first pick, all 


employees, by seniority, may pick any number of their remaining vacation days in any 


configuration prior to March 1st.  After March 1st, any remaining days employees may have can 


be taken on a first-come, first-serve basis without regard to seniority throughout the year.  When 


picking their vacation days, the employee shall respond within 48 hours of the initial posting or 


they will lose that pick. 


 


During this procedure, all intended vacation picks shall be accessible (posted as a single 


master copy) so employees do not overlap vacation allotments. 


 


For the purpose of this Section, a vacation pick year shall commence on March 1st and end 


on the last day of February. 


 


Section 6.  Vacation may be taken one (1) day at a time on three (3) clays notice to the 


Chief of Police, provided no unit job would be left unmanned as a result.  No more than three (3) 


patrol officers will be allowed off on any one (1) day using any combination of time off such as 


vacation, comp time, holiday, or personal days. 


 


ARTICLE XI - INSURANCE 


 


Section 1.  Should the City elect to provide group health and dental insurance coverage, 


full-time (eligible) employees who elect such coverage shall pay a monthly premium equal to 3% 


of the total premium cost. Such payments shall be made by payroll deduction.  For full information, 


please refer to your Plan Documents or contact the Director of Human Resources & Risk 


Management. Nothing in this Article shall be construed to limit the City’s right to unilaterally 


determine the design and selection of health care coverage plans nor obligate the City to bargain 


over the impact of such plans on wages, hours and conditions of employment.  To the extent to 


which the Affordable Care Act would necessitate changes in premium, the Agreement may be 







 


11 


 


reopened for that limited purpose only to the extent such changes would constitute a mandatory 


subject of bargaining. 


 


Section 2.  The City will pay the full premium for the existing group life plan. 


 


Section 3.  The City shall provide false arrest insurance for each employee. 


 


Section 4.  Income protection insurance will continue to be made available to those 


employees who currently have such coverage.  Participation shall be by payroll deduction with the 


employee responsible for the entire premium. 


 


Section 5.  Employees may participate in the Income Continuation insurance program 


currently provided by the City through the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds.  The 


City shall pay the full premium based upon a 90 day waiting period.  An employee electing a 


shorter waiting period (30 or 60 days) shall pay the additional premium by payroll deduction. 


 


Section 6.  The City may change life insurance carriers as long as the coverage remains 


substantially equivalent to the current coverage. 


 


ARTICLE XII - RETIREMENT 


 


The Employee shall pay the WRS-mandated contribution as a percentage of WRS-required 


earnings required of general municipal employees with the City paying the balance of the total 


contribution. 


 


ARTICLE XIII - SICK LEAVE 


 


Section 1.  All full-time employees shall earn and shall be granted sick leave with pay at 


the rate of ninety-six (96) hours per year.  There is no cap on the accumulation of sick leave which 


may be used while the employee is employed by the City. 


 


Section 2.  In order to be granted sick leave with pay, the department head or supervisor or 


employee must adhere to the following: 


 


a) Report reason for absence from work promptly. 


b) Keep Employer informed on one's condition. 


c) Permit Employer to make such medical inquiry as he may determine necessary. 


d) Submit medical certificate for any absence of more than three (3) working days 


certifying as to inability to work. 


 


Section 3.  When an insufficient sick leave balance remains to cover the absence of an 


employee, the remainder shall be charged either to accumulated vacation or leave without pay, at 


the employee's option. 


 


Section 4.  When an employee is on paid, sick leave the accrual of sick leave and vacation 


leave benefits shall continue during the period of convalescence.  Employees shall be allowed to 







 


12 


 


use sick leave if they become sick while on vacation.  (A doctor’s certificate or other evidence to 


support this sickness may be required.) 


 


Section 5.  As a matter of concern for the safety of the officer and others, employees should 


not report to work if they do not feel able to perform adequately or might expose fellow employees 


to becoming ill.  Sick leave accumulated each year should not be used for any purpose other than 


bona fide employee illness or illness in the immediate family.  Willful misuse of sick leave or the 


willful making of false reports regarding illness will subject the employee to disciplinary action 


and will be considered just cause for suspension, demotion or discharge. 


 


Section 6.  Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employee.  All full-time employees 


who actually retire from City service and apply (within 60 days of last day paid) for a retirement 


annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement System, which annuity must exceed $10.00 per month, 


shall have their sick leave credits up to one thousand two hundred fifty (1250) hours (at the time 


of their retirement) converted to a monetary value (hours of credit times normal hourly rate of pay 


received immediately prior to retirement) and transferred to a Retiree Health Reimbursement Plan.  


Any amount of sick leave credits in excess of one thousand two hundred fifty (1250) hours shall 


be converted to a monetary value at the rate of fifty percent (50%), which amount shall also be 


transferred to a Retiree Health Reimbursement Plan. 


 


There is no other payment of accrued but unused sick leave. 


 


Section 7.  Base sick leave may be used on a pro rata basis to make up the difference 


between any Worker's Compensation loss of work benefits and full regular pay. 


 


Section 8.  Sick leave may be used by an employee for illness in the employee's immediate 


family or person living in the employee's household. 


 


Section 9.  The City shall comply with the applicable provisions of the state and federal 


Family and Medical Leave Acts. 


 


Section 10.  Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Surviving Spouse. In the event that an employee 


covered by this Agreement dies during the course of his/her employment and is survived by a 


spouse, their entire accrued sick leave credits, at time of death, shall be converted to a monetary 


value (hours of credit times normal hourly rate of pay received immediately prior to death) which 


shall be paid toward the Health Reimbursement Plan (“HRA”). 


 


ARTICLE XIV – LONGEVITY 


 


Section 1.  A longevity bonus will be paid to all permanent, full-time City employees 


annually on the payday closest to the 1st of December, based on continuous service to the City as 


follows: 


 


a) Employees must have completed three (3) full years of City employment December 


1st to receive their first longevity bonus payment of One Hundred Fifty Dollars 


($150.00). 







 


13 


 


 


b) Subsequent longevity bonus payments shall be increased by Fifty Dollars ($50.00) 


for each additional full year of employment. 


 


c) Continuous employment shall not be considered to have been interrupted by 


absence from work during which an employee is receiving, as a City employee, 


Worker's Compensation or sick leave pay, or while an employee is in the military 


service. Periods of absence from work during a leave of absence authorized by the 


City Council shall not be added to a period of previous employment in computing 


longevity, but any such period of previous employment may be added to the period 


of employment immediately succeeding a period of authorized leave in a computing 


longevity. 


 


d) No pro-rations shall be permitted in computing an employee's length of 


employment or amount of longevity bonus payments. In addition, no partial 


payments shall be made to employees who have terminated during the year, except 


that on retirement or death, the longevity bonus may be prorated to the first day of 


the month in which retirement or death occurs. 


 


ARTICLE XV – MISCELLANEOUS 


 


Section 1.  Employees required to go to court other than during their regular shift shall be 


guaranteed two (2) hours at time and one-half (1-1/2).  For court trips outside Stoughton, 


employees shall be allowed to use a squad car or shall be paid mileage as allowed by the City 


Council in the work rules.  A minimum of two (2) hours at time and one-half (1-1/2), shall be 


granted to an employee who is requested to report outside of his regular schedule of hours or who 


reports to work as scheduled and is sent home.  An employee will be given a twenty-four (24) hour 


notice of cancellation by court if not required to appear in court. 


 


Section 2.  Whenever it becomes necessary to lay-off employees, part time employees shall 


be laid off first, then the full-time employees with the least seniority. Recall shall be done in reverse 


order of layoff. 


 


Section 3.  Newly hired employees shall serve an eighteen (18) month probationary period. 


 


Section 4.  Whenever a personal pronoun is referred to in this Agreement, the intent is to 


apply to either sex. 


 


Section 5.  Every employee under this Contract shall have the right upon his/her request to 


be made aware of the contents of all personnel, supervisory and evaluation reports incorporated in 


his/her file. Employees shall receive a copy of all documents to be included in their file (including 


permanent file). 


 







 


14 


 


An employee shall have the right and the opportunity to discuss any item contained in 


his/her file with the administrator at which time the employee may request that a representative 


for the Association be present. 


 


An employee shall have the right of rebuttal in writing supervisory report incorporated in 


his/her file. 


 


For purpose of this Section, “file” shall mean those documents maintained by the 


administration of Stoughton Police Department and/or City of Stoughton on an employee. 


 


ARTICLE XVI – RESIDENCY 


 


Section 1.  Officers must reside within forty-five (45) miles of the Police Station as 


measured by the closest road route. 


 


ARTICLE XVII – DURATION 


 


Section 1.  This Agreement shall become effective as of January 1, 2019, and shall remain 


in full force and effect until and including December 31, 2020  and shall be automatically renewed 


from year to year thereafter, unless negotiations are initiated by either party prior to July 1, 2020,  


and at any first of July on any effective year thereafter. 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the ____ 


day of December, 2018. 


 


City of Stoughton For the Association 


 


 


 


_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


Mayor President 


 


 


 


 


_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


City Representative Representative 


  







 


15 


 


APPENDIX A 


WAGE RATES 


 


 


Patrol 1/1/19   


 


Start  $27.92 


1 Year $29.07  


2 Years $30.25 


3 Years  $31.40 


4 Years $32.62 


 


 


Detective 1/1/19 


 


Start  $28.50 


1 Year $29.76 


2 Years $30.97 


3 Years  $32.23 


4 Years $33.45 


 


 


Patrol 1/1/20 


 


Start  $28.76 


1 Year $29.94  


2 Years $31.16 


3 Years  $32.34 


4 Years $33.60 


 


 


Detective 1/1/20 


 


Start  $29.36 


1 Year $30.65 


2 Years $31.90 


3 Years  $33.20 


4 Years $34.45 


  


  







 


16 


 


APPENDIX “B” 


INITIAL UNIFORM ISSUE LIST 
 


 


ITEM QUANTITY 


Winter Hat 1 


Summer Hat 1 


Squad Jacket 1 


Pants 2 


Sweater 1 


Shirt Summer 2 


Shirt Winter 2 


Turtle Neck 2 


Tie 1 


Tie Tac/Pin 1 


Name Plate 1 


Belt Garrison 1 


Belt Sam Brown 1 


Handcuff Case 1 


Key Strap 1 


Belt Keepers 1 


Holster 1 


Hand cuffs 1 
Baton 1 


Squad Case 1 


Form Holder 1 


Whistle 1 


Gloves 1 


Sewing -- 


Chevrons -- 


Badge Wallet 1 


Pistol Lock 1 


Footwear 1 


Rain Gear 1 


Flashlight 1 


OC Holder 1 


Radio Sleeve 1 


Ballistic Vest 1 


 


 


 


 





		08a-RESOLUTION to Approve Police Department 2021-2022 Union Contract

		08b-Tentative Agreements (A3937812)

		08c-Union Contract 2019



